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OPERATIONS REPORT

OVERVSEW OF COMPANY'S ACTIVITIES Overall Operating Strategy

During the period under review, the following key events were Antisense Therapeutics "strategy s
announced by the Company: : > to create candidate antisense drugs for diseases where
> Halfway mark reached for enrolment of patients into the there are 1arge and/or poorly rnet markets;
Phase lla clinical trial of ATL1 102 in MU'tip'E Sclerosis > to out.sgurce pre-chnmal and chmca[ testmg Df the
> ATL1102 European and Japanese patents granted . candidate drugs to expert contractors; and
i
> Successiul raising of $2.07M in a share placement to > to CommerClahse the drugs that are shown to'be successful
overseas institutional investors . . through I|censmg deals or other partnersh:ps wnh major

. pharmaceutncal companies.
> Extension of drug discovery and development collaboration
with Isis Pharmaceuticals Inc. (lsis’) . The Company’s bus:ness mode! of outsourcing pre-clinicat and

clinical testing-minimises infrastructure and overhead costs. The
> ATL1103 for growth and sight disorders compound

“ Company works with contractors and consultants on a
progressed towards clinical development

. worldwidé basis in order to gain access to the best possible,
Mission - expertise in'each-area of the Companys résearch and

. e N ‘ .development FAtiONS. These outsourcm activitie's ard
Antisense Therapeutics' {'the Company’) mission is to create,- velopment ope ti 9

s mana ement wh:ch has
develop and commercialise novel antisense therapeutics. The closely controlled by the Company 9

. "l
extenswe £x erience in the research and’ c[mr al’develo eht - T
Company’s research and develoument activities are focused on p ) ME pm
of pharmaceuncal products . /,71

#
.

significant and acknowledged unmet medical need and where - ksis Strateglc Par‘tnershtp ya
the antisense technology has the potential to provide

compounds with ¢clear competitive advantages over emstlng
therapies or drugs i in development for those diseases. *© *

developing antisense drugs for diseases where there is a

1 s ,f
A fundamentai element of he Antise Therapeuf1cs 5tfategy
|s |ts access to state of tbe art ant;seﬁse tfeéhnol/ ogy derwed
from its s‘trateglc partnérshtp wnlwlsu; Isns 1s'an acknowledged

h . o
Antisense Techr\glogy ) o world Ieadef in the fueid of anttsense lsns currently has one

i t] ket And 17 |sense reducts i in
Proteins play a central, role in v1rtually every aspect of human -aniisense drug on he marxet a a,n; P

biclogy. Each of our genes is @ set of instructions for the
manufacture inside the cell of a particular unique protein.
Conventional pharmace_upcal drugs typically bring about their
desired therapeutic effect by binding to a 1arget protein
directly, to interfere with the action of the. disease causing
protein. :

' development Isis has severalpartnershtps th major

pharmaceuhca! compames mcludmg drug gevelopment
co!laboratzons wnth Ely Lally &FCo ahd, as recently reported,
anto!_ Myefs"':qmbb L

. , . I L. ' vel
Antisense drugs, unlike conventional small-molecule medicines, drug discovery tEChnUIOQY and de € mee

are rationally designed to bind to target messenger RNA with ; develop and commercnahse antlseose drugs

extraordinary precision and thereby block or stop the P ’ Y . ‘\
production of the disease causing protein in the first instance. S N .
. o . \
- . - ) N
Antisense drugs have the potential to treat a wide range of N \\,
conditions including autoimmune, inftammatory, infectious, \
metabolic and cardiovascular diseases as well as cancer. : \
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PROJECTS UPDATE

ATL1102 for Multiple Sclerosis

ATL1102 is a second generation antisense inhibitor of CD49d, a
subunit of VLA-4 (Very Late Antigen-4), and is currently in Phase
lla clinical trials as a treatment for MS. In inflammation, white
blood cells (leukocytes) move out of the bloodstream into the
inflamed tissue, for example, the Central Nervous System {CNS)
in M5, and the lung airways in asthma. The inhibition of VLA4
may prevent white blood cells from entering sites of
inflamrmatian, thereby halting progression of the disease. VLA-4
is a clinically validated target in the treatment of MS. Antisense
inhibition of VLA4 has demonstrated positive effects in a
number of animal models of inflammatory disease including
MS, the MS animal data having been published in a peer
reviewed scientific journal.

;@ma tnvestigator of ATL1102 Phase Ita Clinical
Trial at !nvesrf'g}'att?j?' ‘ "Fg'n\ﬁussia.

S

WHAT IS MULTIPLE SCLEROSIS? .

Multiple Sclercsis (MS) is a life-long, chronic disease that
progressively destroys the central nervous system (CNS}.
it affects approximately 400,000 people in hlorth
America and the current market for MS drugs is
esumated at rose than USDES billion. it is a disease
that affects more women than men. with onset typically
occurring between 20 and 40 years of age. Symptoms of
MS may include vision problems, loss of balance,
numbness, difficulty walking and paralysis. In Australia
MS affects aver 15,000 people and worldwide MS may
afiect more than one million people.

A7 ;
Progress Vi ;}"‘ VA

As previously reported, the Companfis gd;flent,@'cor}d,ucting a
Phase l1a clinical trial of ATL1 102/jﬁ,pa/ti;{nt/s.-;’~:igh re}épsing
remitting multiple sclerosis (MS}. Thé study.’a muliicentre,
randomised, double-blinded, p ac/ o;c:o/ntrqlléd clinical trial in
approximately 80 patients witlh,rélapsing-refnitting MS will
assess the activity andéafet/y of}he dyg‘in MS patients.

oot
2
/7/// /

The Company announced in October 2006 that it was
establishing additional chinical trial sites in Europe for the Phase
lla trial to address the slower than expected rate of patient
recruitment and that it would alse modify the patient enrolment
criteria in order to further aid recruitment into the trial. The
Company made submissions to relevant regulatory authorities
in certain Central Eastern European (CEFE) countries and in
January this year announced that it rece-i‘éred approval to start
the trial in 3 cauntries (Bulgaria, Slovak Republic, and Romania).
At the same time the Company anncunced that it had dosed its

-first patient in a CEE country.

In June this year, the Company announced that it had
successfully enrolled 40 patients into the trial, which is half of
the patients anticipated for the trial. The Company also
confirmed that it had received approval in 6 countries (Poland,
Czech Republic, Bulgaria, Romania, Slovak Republic and
Germany) to conduct the Phase la trial.

In the period, the Company also reported positive results from
anima! experiments which provide further support for the
potential of VLA antisense inhibition to treat MS and other
autoimmune diseases. In these animal studies conducted by

Antisense Therapeutics, treatment with a VLA-4 antisense drug

caused a significant increase in total leucocyte count.
Increasing levels of circulating leucocytes in the blood is
regarded as a valid biological marker for a VLA-4 targeting
drug's pharmacological activity. Another key observation from
these experiments was that treatment with the antisense drug
significantly inhibited VLA-4 on relevant leucocytes
(lymphocytes). Importantly, the compound's effect was shown to
be maintained for one month after the final dose. This
extended duration of effect has been observed with other 2nd
generation antisense compounds and suggests the potential
for less frequent {e.g., once monthly), and therefore more
convenient dosing of these agents in patients.

Beate Karow {Technical Assistant) Neuropharmacology Lab at University
Hospital, Essen, Germany.
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Patent Status

Antisense Therapeutics has an exclusive license to the Isis
Patent Family, International application PCT/US99/18796,
covering ATL1102, methads of reducing integrin alpha 4
expression and methods of treetment of disease including MS
and asthma using ATL1102.

The international applicatior, antitled "Ancisense modulation of
integrin alpha 4 expression” filed on 19 August 1999 claims
priority from US application 09/166 203 filed 5 October 1998.

In the period the Company announced that the European
Patent Office had granted a patent No 1123414 entitled
“Antisense Modulation of Integrin alpha 4 expression” which
covers ATL1102 until 2019. The Europesn patent application
has been registered in the United Kingdom, Germany, France,
Italy, Spain, Denmark, Finland, Netherlands and Sweden,

. Patent'applucanb :

Countfy’
: or Patent No,

- Internaticnal Mational Pnase

. Cw LTk epplications

Canada
.. Australia

NN

*

Also in the period, the Company advised that the Japanese
Patent Office had granted a patent No.: 3834204 entitled
“Antisense modulation of integrin 4 expression” which also -

covers Antisense Therapeutics lead compound ATL1102 until
2019,

These granted paternts exclusively licensed to the Company by
{sis, form part of the extensive portfolio of intellectual property
protecting ATL1102 and its applications in the treatiment of
multiple sclerosis (MS), asthma and other diseases. These
include granted patents in the US, Japan and Austrafia and a
patent pending in Canada. In Europe and Australia, claims to
ATL1102 can be extended to 2024 once the drug is -egistered,

Comments

' . ':alad as a contnnuatlon of
2000-574727

ATL1102is protected\tu the,above p;tents to 2019 with potential for extensions to the patent term to 2024.

** ATL1102 s also protectecl mternanonally by other‘lsns proprietary antisense technology patents and applications, to which
Antisense Therapeutics his w\ rId-w:de Lc.ense including US7015315 to 2023.

\
}
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ATL1103 FOR GROWTH AND SIGHT DISORDERS

ATL1103 is a second generation antisense drug designed to
block growth hormaone receptor (GHr) expression thereby
reducing levels of the hormone insutin-like growth factor- (IGF-
lyin the blood and is a potential treatment for diseases
associated with excessive g;owth hormone action. These
diseases include acromegaly (an abnormal grovhh disorder of
organs, face, hands and feet} and diabetic retinopathy. The
latter disorder is a common disease of the eye and a major
cause of blindness. Acromegalic patients are known to have
significantly higher blood IGF-! fevels than healthy individuals.
Reduction of these levels to normal is accepted by clinical
authorities as the primary marker of an effective drug treatment
for the disease. In the case of diabetic retinopathy, published
clinical studies have shown that treatments producing a
reduction in IGF-| levels retarded the progression of the disease
in patients. '

N

Progress

In animal study results previously reported by the “ompany,
ATL1103 demonstrated its intended therapeutic action by
significantly reducing IGF-! levels in the blood. Suspression of
IGF-! in the blood is an important indicator of clinical benefit in
the treatment of acromegaly and diabetic retinopathy. In a
primate study, monkeys were injected with ATL1103 overa &
week period. IGF-| levels were suppressed by 35% relative to
placebo, a leval of effect, which if achieved in humans, would
be expected to provide potential therapeutic ber.efit.

ATL1103 has also demonstrated its intended therapeutic action
in an animal model of retinopathy by significantly reducing
retinal neovascularisation (the growth of abnormz! new blood
vessels). In the human disease, these new abnormal blood
vessels break and bleed into the eye leading to s=arring within
the eye and, in turn, blindness if not treated.

WHAT IS ACROMEGALY AND DIABETIC RETINOPATHY?"

5 rd

4

Acromagaly is a serious chranic life threatening disease

:riggergd by excess secretion of growti'{ hormone (GH) by
benign pituitary turmours. Oversupply of GH over stimulates
liver, fat and kidney cells, through lﬁe'!ii,r_GH receptors, to _
produce excess lavels of Insulin-Uké Growth Factor-l (1GF-)
in the blood manifesting in sbnormat growth of the face,
hands and faet, and enlargement of body ordgans including
tiver, kidney and heant. The primary treatments dor
acromegaly are fo ;qi'g ically remove tﬁé pitujtary gland
and/or drug therapy to nofmalize: GH.and serum IGF! .
levels. In North America, Europe and Japan there are
approximately 40,000 disgrasad acro n{eg'aigr pétients bt
about half requiring drug theragy. In 2004, the total
acromegaly market was valued at US$780M and forecast to
grow with the introduction of newer and mare effective
medications,

N

ANTISENSE

affected by diabetic retinopathy. .—'\round‘ 12,000-P4,

patients with dial;etic retinopathy fose their eyesight each

-yearin the US alone. This condition is caused byjabnormal
new blood vessal formation in the retina or macila (the

central part of the retih;gl In dizbetes, high E*flo_o' glucose &

T can cause oxygen deprivation in certain tissues, fhich can

‘Stjmula_'té factors that induce additianal blood'vdsselsinthe
tetina. These naw blood vessels may braak and bleed into
the eye leading to scarring within the sye. Surgigal ablative
traatments such as phatocoagulation taser thechpy) are
available but are not completely effective, may dause partial
vision loss, and can only be used a limited number of times,
There 15 presently no pharmaceutical therapeutif approved
for the treatment of diabetic reﬁnopathy.

THERAFPEUTICS



In the period the Company announced its intention to progress
ATL1103 towards clinical development and that sufficient
quantities of the drug were to be manufactured for pre-clinical
safety and initial human clinical trials which would then be
formulated into injectable product to be used in the requisite
pre-clinical toxicology studies.

Patent Status

Antisense Therapeutics and Isis have lodged an international
application PCT/UUS2004/005896 covering ATL1103 and
methods of reducing serum IGF-1 and GHr expression and
methods of treatment of diseases including acromegaly and
retinopathy.

Patent application Current Status

or Patent No.

U5 10/789.526
US 2004253723

US 10/927 464
US 2605282761

PCT/US2004/0056%%

International Mational Phase

applications
Aystralia
Canada

Europe 047155427

100039705
20046-5038751

10,547,239

. x\' -
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ATL1102 FOR ASTHMA ol

The Company has previously reported encouraging results
achieved in an animal model of asthma with the inhaled farm of
an antisense compound targeting the VLA-4 molecule.
Experimental studies showed that the delivery of an antisense
drug against VLA-4 via inhalation to the lung significantly
suppiessed the key asthma indicators in allergen sensitised
rice at very low inhaled doses, pointing to the potential new
indication for ATL1102 as an inhaled treatment for asthma.

ANNUAL

Awaiting Examination

The international application entitled, "Modulation of Growth

Hormone Receptor Expression & insulin like growth factor

expression” filed 27 February 2004 claims priority fram US //—’
60/451,455 and 60/490,230 filed 28 February 2003 and 25 July --- ‘//--"""'"
2003 respectively. . . T -

."'

We have entered this apphcatnon mto the Nauonal PhaSe in
Australia, Canada Europe, Japan, NeW’Zealand fd thé Umtedf /
States. Two further US patent apphcatlons US/ZCD4253723’and -~
US 2005282761 have also been Iodged f,'/ /' // S

Awaiting
Examination

Filed as a continuation in part of
US 10789526

£004217508 Awaiting Examinaticn 2024

2024~ Designates all member states of
European patent countries

including afl extension states.

0-'
P T

 The existing data package that ha; been developed to date on-
-'ATL1102 for MS (an injection formulation), including some

animal.{oxicology studies and Phase | human studies, will
support the clinical development of ATL1102 as an inhaled
drug in patients with asthma.

The Company’s decision to move this compound into
development will depend on the availability of funds and/or the
patential interest from partners to in-license this drug based on
the pre-clinical and clinical data generated to date.

REPORT 2007 (8]




Patent Status from US applications US 60/620,792 and US 80/648,820 filed 20
Antisense Therapeutics have lodged International patent October 2004 and 31 January 2005 respectively.

application PCT AU 2005/001634 for low dose & inhaled
ATL1102 for use in asthma and other respiratory conditions.

We have entered this application into the National Phase in the
United States, Japan, Europe, Canada, New Zealand and

The international application entitled “Topical administrations Australia.

of antisense compounds to VLA-4 for the treatment of

respiratory conditions” filed on 20 October 2005 claims priority

Patent applicatio .+ Current Status ™.
or Patent No. .

" Intemational | PCT AU2005/001634 | National Phase
' S R ) applications

Designates all mermber
* Eurapean patent countr

——— \\\
ATL1102 low dose inhaled applicatiot\ére potentially-protécted to 2025'f0ruse,_i-rl asthma and other fespiratary conditions.
o . ~
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1515 COLLABORATION

During the year the Company announced that it and Isis had
agreed to extend their drug discovery and development
collaboration for a further two years.

The original collaboration agreement which commenced in
December 2001 allowed Antisense Therapeutics to select, test
and assess new antisense compounds for a variety of diseases
and potential commercial markets. The intent of this agreement
and its extension is to add new products to Antisense
Therapeutics current drug developrment pipeline. The
collaboration agreement facilitates Antisense Therapeutics
holding world-wide exclusive licenses to any of those drugs
which it ultimately decides to develop and commercialise.

ANTISENSE TECHNOLOGY DEVELOPMENTS:

In the period Isis announced that it has obtained positive new
results from Phase Il clinical trials of its 2nd generation antisense

drug, IS15 301012 for the reduction of atherogenic lipids, in

particular high LDL cholesterol and tnglycendes

Isis have reported that studies continue to demonstrate a strong

safety profile for I15iS 301012,

The 2nd generation antisense compounds developed by Isis al}
share the same basic chemistry which means their '
pharmacokinetics (the way they are distributed and retained in
the body) and their safety profiles are similar. The compounds
are also manufactured, formulated and administered in the
same way.

The results reported by Isis on ISIS 301012 provide important
further validation of the successful elinical application of 2nd
generation antisense drugs such as those currently being
developed by Antisense Therapeutics.

CAPITAL RAISING

The Company received subscriptions through a private
placement to 2 overseas institutions for the issue of 69,000,000
ordinary shares in Antisense Therapeutics at 3 cents per share to
raise $2.07 rillion.

RETIREMENT AND APPOINTMENT OF NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors of Antisense Therapeutics accepted the
retirement of Dr. Stanley Crooke as Non-Executive Director of
the Company and concurrently appointed Dr. C. Frank Bennett,
Senior Vice President of Research at Isis as a Non-Executive
Director to fill the vacancy created by Dr. Crooke's departure on
31 July 2006.

ANNDAL

FINANCIAL POSITION S

As stated in the Balance Sheet the Company’s current cash /‘/ <

reserves as at 30 June 2007 are $7.6 million and are expected t

be sufficient to fund the completion of the ATLY102 Ph e lIa

clinical trial. In relation to the proposed use of funds described

above, it should be recognised that there will typrcally be /

differences between the forecast and actua resul'es beciuse .~ ./, /

events and circumstances frequently do.not occur as expected/ 7

and those differences may be material. // //
ey

BIOTECHNOLOGY © "‘OMPANIE/S INH R/ENT RISKS

Some of the risks mherent in the dedelopmént oT a’

‘pharmaceutical product toa marketable stage nclude the

uncertainty of pateﬁt protectnon and propr;etary rights, whether
patent apphcatxons and |ssu,ed paten(s w:ll offer adequate
protection to enable produc‘t deve.opment or may infringe

intellectual property rlghts of other partnes the obtaining of the

necessary drug regulatory authonty approvals and difficulties
caused by the rapid advancements in technology Also a .
‘particular. compound may fail thi chm?al development process

' through Iack of efﬁcacy or safety; Companses such as Antisense
Therapeutrcs are dependent on ¥he success of their research = .,

projects dnd on the abrhty to attract fundmg to support these
activities, Investment in reqearch and development projects
cannot be assessed on the same fundamentals as trading and
manufacturing enterpnses T‘bus méestment\'h these areas must
be regarded as speéulatlve takmg into aCCOu\m t

\
considerations. . \ \\ AN
N, “ SR

This Annual Financial Report Wcontam forvard lookmg
statements regarding the potential of: the Compan}(s pro;e&s\ .
and interests and the development of the Comganys pf'Oj\CtS \

the Company's research and development projects. Any
statement describing a goal, expectation, intention or belief of
the Company is a forward-looking statement and should be
considered an atisk statement, Such statements are subject to
certain risks and uncertainties, particularly those inherent in the
process of discovering, developing and commercialising drugs
that are safe and effective for use as human therapeutics and the
financing of such activities. There is no guarantee that the .
Company’s research and development projects will be successful
or receive regulatory approvals or prove to be commercially
successful in the future. Actual results of further research could
differ from those projected or detailed in this report.

As a result, you are cautioned not to rely on forward-looking
statements. Consideration should be given to these and other
risks concerning the Company’s research and development
program referred to in this Directors’ Report and in the
Cormnpany’s ‘Operations Report’ as contained in this Annual
Financial Report for the pericd ended 30 June 2007.

REPORT 2007 (0]
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

The board of directors of Antisense Therapeutics Limited (‘the
Company’} present their report for the year ended 30 June 2007,

DIRECTORS

The following persons were directors of the Company during the
whole of the financial year and up to the date of this report,
unless stated otherwise:

Mr Robert W Moses

Mr Mark Diamond

Dr Chris Belyea

Dr Frank Bennett (appointed 31/07/04)
Prof, Graham Mitchell

Prof. George Werthe:

Dr Stanley Crooke [retired 31/07/06)

COMPANY SECRETARY

O
- :

and chief financial officer since 9 November 2006. Mr Haing, isa

Chartered Accountant operating a specialist public practice;;The

CFO Solution’. The CFO Solution focuses on providing back "., .
office support, financial reporting and compliance systems for. -

listed public companies. A specialist in the public company T "'.
environment, Mr Hains has served the needs of a numberof |

company boards and their related committees. He has over 20

years’ expeiience in prcmdmg businesses with accounting, .~ :
o .

~administration, campliance and“genera! rmanagement sernvices.

e
P

P

:ﬂ?ath[yn Andrewsi_‘sﬂe_rved as the Comp‘anys company
cretary from 20 June 2006 10 9 Novembe\2006 Ms Andrews i :s

a ertified Pract:smg Accountantand has over\20 years

expanente in accountlng, commerciah managemen{ and

pnsult|ng ln_.&'_&ll’_l‘glis ;\s‘predomlnatelyl the minirg and
XQﬂpany as chuef

ontlnued in that ro!e
RS \ N,

financial officer in September 20023

until 9 November 2006.

\.“
The loss of the Company after providing for income taX\ 3
amounted to $4,835,963. For further detail, refer to the\‘
‘Operations Report’ on pages 2to 11.

X

kY
AY

DIVIDENDS, -

The directors did not pay any ¢ dlwdends dunng the financial year.”

The directors,do not recommend the payment ofa dnndend in
respect of the 2007 f'nanctal year.” o oLt .

.

+ R
e

a

SIGNIF!CANT CHANGES IN STATE OF AFFAIRS .

4

In the opinion of the directors, there were no significant changes
in the state of affairs of the Company durang ‘the flnancual year
under review not otherwise disclosed elseg«(here_ in this Annual
Report. ’

e

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE. BALANCE DATE

\
There has not been any matter or cucumstance other than that
referred toin the financial statements or notes thereto, that has
arisen since the' end of the financial year, that has s:gmf‘cantly

SER aﬁected or may mgmﬁcantly affect, the operations ¢ of the - 'k'
Mr Phillip Hains has served as the Company’s company secretary *

the Company i future: flnancml years. e

. w
,\... AN
‘¢ ' !.

LIKELY DEVELOPMENTS 'AND EXPECTED RESULTS

.

- The lukely developments |n the Companys operations, to the
extent that Such, maﬁers can be commented upon, are covered

m the '@peratuons Reportf on pages § to 11
"% ;f" v

OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Duﬁng the period under review, the following key events were
_ announced by the Company:

; L
"> vHalfway mark reached for enrolment of patients into the

. _ Phase lla clinical trial of ATL1102 in Muttiple Sclerosis
ATL1102 European and Japanese patents granted

Successful raising of $2.07M in a share placement to overseas
institutional investors

Extension of drug discovery and development collaboration
with Isis Pharmaceuticals Inc. {Isis)

ATL1103 for growth and sight disorders compound
progressed towards clinical development
\Results

'i"k\\e loss of the Company after income tax far the financial year
was $4,835,963 (2006: $5,462,401). This result has been achieved
ahe?fully expensing all research and development costs. The

\
N |oss for, the financial year reflects a decrease in research and

b

AN
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Company the results. 'of those operations, or the state of aﬂa:rs of .




. \\\\: RN

\developmént expenses amortisation of intellectual property
because th mtangnble assets were fully amortised at December
2006\The €om ny k has no borrowings and at 30 June 2007 had

cash reserves of 37, 5% 588 ~

”|e O el'alo | Repqt 0V|des urther de:a S
o] 5 OQ p@\ges 2\0 P

regarding the progress ade Qy the Company since the prior
financial period, which have omnb{\ed to. &s\ results for the year.
NN N

Antisense Therapeutics Limited's currehs:ash reseNES are
expected to be sufficient to fund plann}e actn(nt:es \‘

AN

Financial condition

\\

In relation to the proposed use of !unds desc\r ed above and
below, it should be recognised that there awill ty lca[}y be
differences between the forecast and actusl resu&s because
events and circumstances frequently do not &ecur as expected
and those differences may be material.

Risk management

The board is responsible for overseging the e..tébhshmen and
mp[ementanon of the risk management -ystem, and 5 tg rewew
and assess the eflectiveness of the Company’s lmpiemen}atsqn of

that system on a regular basis. /]

!
The board and senior management continues to: |denllfy the
general areas of risk and their impact on the’ actwmes/of the
Py
Company, including: ///:;////
V4
economic outlook and share rna}ké // E/

>
> changing government pc;ch'I usl.gahart and overseas);
> compeliors’ e'r’pduc‘gi;esearch and development programs;
> marker em;ed nd Trarket prices for
i )herapeuhcsldaagnostlcs
ot legal proceedings commenced against the Company;
:-I environmental regulations;

. ethical issues relating to pharmaceutical research and
development; ’

other government regulations including those specifically
relating to the biotechnology and heath industries;

==

occupational health and safety and equal opportunity law.

Management wilf continue to perform a regular review of the
following:

> the major risks that occur within the business;

> the degree of risk involved,

the current approach to managing the risk; and
if appropriate, determine:

- any inadequacies of the current approach; and

- possible new approaches that more efficiently and
effectively address the risk.

REY) ANTISENSE

Biotechnology Companies - Inherent Risks

Some of the risks inherent in the development of a
pharmaceutical product to a marketable stage include the
uncertainty of patent protection and proprietary rigtits, whether
patent applications and issued patents will offer adequate
protection to enable product development or may infringe
intellectual property rights of other parties, the obtaming of the
necessary drug regulatory authosity approvals and d fliculties
caused by the rapid advancements in technology. Also a
particular compound may fail the clinical development process
through lack of efficacy or safety. Companies such as Antisense
Therapeutics Limited are dependent on the success of their
research projects and on the ability to attract funding to support
these activities. Investment in research and development
projects cannot be assessed on the same fundamentals as
wrading and manufacturing enterprises. Thus investment in these
areas must be regarded as speculative faking into aczount these
considerations.

This Annual Financial Report may contain forward-looking
statements regarding the potential of the Company’s projects
and interests and the development of the Company*. projects
and interests and the development and therapeutic potential of
the Company’s research and development projects. /iy *
statement describing a goal, expectation, intention or belief of
the Cornpany is a forward-looking staternent and should be
considered an at-risk statement. Such staternents are subject to
certain risks and uncertainties, particularly those inhetent in the
process of discovering, developing and commercialising drugs
that are safe and effective for use as human therapeu:ics and the
financing of such activities. There is no guarantee tha: the
Company's research and development projects will be successful
or receive regulatory approvals or prove to be commecially
successful in the future. Actual results of further research could
differ from those projected or detailed in this report.

As aresult, you are cautioned rot to rely on forward-looking
statements. Consideration should be given to these and other
risks concerning the Company’s research and development
program referred to in this Directors’ Report and in thz
Company’s 'Operations Report” as contained in this Avnual
Financial Report for the period ended 30 June 2007.

ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATION AND
PERFORMANCE

The Company is involved in research and developmert and the

" activities do not create any significant/material environmental
impact. To the best of the Company's knowledge, scientific
research activities are in full compliance with all prescnibed
enwironmental regulations.

THERAPEUTICS




INFORMATION ON DIRECTORS

Left to Right: Prof Graham Mitchell, Dr C Frank Bennett, Mr Robert W Moses, Dr Chris Belyea, Prof George Werther, Mr Mark Diamond ,
J/ /:/
Vv
’ e %
MR ROBERT W MOSES /://// 7///"/
7
Independent Non-Executive Chairman // /'// /,, / ,/
_ ‘ ey
Appointed to the board Development at IC {now Orica). Mr Moses also spent 17 yehrs '/
23 October 2001 in various management roles at the multinational  / / F
Last elected by shareholders pharmaceutical corn_plany El L”.ly~ // ,’i / ;
20 Qctober 2004 Interest in shares and options_ g 4 {,—’ i ,-‘;/
Qualifications 888,462 ord.inary shares. . ’ ’/,- //f' ;,,
BA, MBA, FAICD, FAIM Committees N S / /
. Chairman of the Remuneration Cormmittee and membesof the
Experience ) . / RN
Robert (Bob) Moses was formerly Vice President of CSL Limited, Audit Committee. "
Mr Moses draws on more than 35 years experience in the Directorships held in other entities f *\ :
pharmaceutical/biotechnalogy industry. During the period Mr Moses is currently non-executive/Chairman of TGR
1993-2001, Mr Moses played a central role in CSLs Biosciences Pty Ltd, Sylvan Scientific anuted,'and a dlrector_:)f
development internationally. Prior to joining CSL, Mr Moses the CRC for Polymers. During the past three years Mr’ Moses
was Managing Director of commercial law firm Freehills, has also served as Chairman of Medltech Research leltgd the,
Chairman and CEO of a NASDAQ listed medical service Australian Stem Cell Centre Limited and Amrad Corporatn(‘m ‘\\
company and Corporate Manager of New Business Limited. ‘\‘\ \\ \\\ \\\
% . e NI
U NS
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MR MARK DIAMOND

Managing Director

Appointed to the board
31 Gctober 200t

Qualifications
BSc, MBA, MAICD

Experience

Mark Diamond has over 20 years experience in the
pharmaceutical and biotechnology industry. Before joining
Antisense Therapeutics Limited, Mr Diamond was working in
the US as Director, Project Planning/Business Development at
Faulding Pharmaceuticals. Prior to this he held the positions of
Senior Manager, Business Development and In-licensing within

DR CHRIS BELYEA

Independent Non-Executive Director

Faulding's European operation based in the UK and
Intesnational Business Development Manager with Faulding in
Australia.

Interest in shares and opticns
199,743 ardinary shares and 2,000,000 options over ordinary
shares.

Committees

Nil

Directorships held in other listed entities
Nil

Appainted to the board
13 November 2000

Last elected by shareholders
20 October 2005

Qualifications
BSc{Hons), PhD, FIPAA

Experience
Chris Belyea has a PhD in physics from the University of
Melbourne and is a registered patent attorney. He become the

\\‘\«;&.}\ _“ndmg CEO of Antisense Therapeutics meted in November

[15]

20QO‘a remained n this role until January 2002 (shortly after
Antusem%The\apeutla Limited was listed on the Awstralian
Stock Excﬁ‘)ﬁgé] »He worked for the Australian patent firm
Griffith Hack &‘Co fﬁyears before joining Circadian
Technologies L:mltqi t{. Licensing and Projects Manager in
1996. In 1998 Dr Belyea Be e founding CEQ and member of

the board of blotechno'!ng <qrhpany, Metabaolic
Pharmaceuticals Limited. He :é cunently Chief Scientific Officer
and was a member of the noard of Metabohc Pharmaceuticals
Limited until 30 August 2007 VY \\ N

R

____J-»"’

ANTISENSE

Interest in shares and options
500,000 ordinary shares.

Committees
Chairman of the Audit Committee and member of the
Remuneration Committee.

Directorships held in other entities
During the past three years Dr Belyea has also served as a
director of Metabolic Pharmaceuticals Limited.

THERAPEUTICS



DR FRANK BENNETT

Non-Executive Director

Appointed to the board
31 July 2006

Last elected by shareholders
10 October 2006

Qualifications
BS¢c, PhD

Experience

Frank Bennett is Senior Vice President of Research at Isis
Pharmaceuticals, Inc ("Isis"). Dr Bennett received a Bachelor of
Science degree in Pharmacy from the University of New Mexico
and a PhD in Pharmacoclogy from Baylor College of Medicine in
Houston, Texas. He is responsible for pre-clinical antisense drug
discovery research. Dr Bennett is one of the founding members
of Isis, He has been involved in the development of antisense
cligonucleotides as therapeutic agents, including research on
the application of oligonucleotides for inflammatory and cancer

targets, oligonucleotide delivery and pharmacokinetics. He also
runs Isis's antisense mechanism program, which is focused on
the development of RNase H, RNAi, micro-RNA and splicing.
Dr Bennett has published more than 125 papers in the field of
antisense research and development and has more than 115
issued U.5. patents. Prior to joining Isis, Dr Bennett was
Associate Senior Investigator in the Development of Molecular
Pharmacology at Smith Kline and French Laboratories,
GlaxoSmithKline.

Interest in shares and options
Nil.
Comsmittees

Member of the Remuneration Commitiee

Directorships held in other entities
Nil.

~
PROF. GRAHAM MITCHELL
Independent Non-Executive Director
/ s
Appointed to the board ] / airy Foundatlon and s a

24 QOctober 2001

‘*--‘\

Last elected by shareholders
10 Octeber 2006

Qualifications
AQ, RDA, BVSc, FACVSc, PhD, FTSE, FAA

L ——

Experience
Graham Mitchell is an advisor in Innovation to the Vlctonan
Government. Prof. Mitchell through Foursight Associates, dcts
as joint Chief Scientist for the Department of Primary Industries
and Department of Sustainability and Environmeny. Prof.
Mitchell is a non-executive director of Compumedics Limited,

." F"/

ANNUAL REPORT\ZOO

AVS Pty Lté the Geoffrenyardm
prmcupal of Fourmghu’Assoma%EPty Ltd. He is a Professorial
Assoc:ate of the Unilersity of Melbourne. Prof. Mutchell has
held the position ofLDnect r of Research in the R&D Division of
CSL 'leiled and {or ma i years was 2 research scientist at The

Wa;lter & Eliza ?«%ﬂ Insﬁ,

te -
lntFrest in shares an opt:ons .
/
Nik " /'
Committees |
Member of tHe Remu'heratibn Comr'ninee.

|
Dlrﬁctorsinps he\d in other enmnes
Profi Mitchell j ;s cl Urrently a non-executive director of

Compumedlcs Limited

‘x.\\
.\\

e
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/ /Tan;getmg and Antisense Research and Deveiop;‘w t, and, hey
Editorial Board of Gene therapy and Molecular Bnology He ¥
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PROF GEORGE WERTHER

Non-Executive Director

Appointed to the board
24 October 2001

Last elected by shareholders
10 October 2006

Qualifications
MD, MSc(Oxcn), FRACP

Experience

George Werther is Director of the Department of Enacrinology
and Diabetes at the Roya! Children’s Hospital, and the Centre
for Hormone Research at the hospital’s Murdoch Childrens
Research Institute, where he also serves onits
Commercialisation Committee, He has served on many national
and international scientific committees, and peer review
bodies, and is on the editorial board of two international
scientific journals. He is the Chairman of the Scientific Advisory

DR STANLEY CROOKE

Non-Executive Director (retired 31/07/06)

Board for Neuren Pharmaceuticals and is on the Scientific
Advisory Board of California-based Tercica Pharmaceuticals. He
was on the council of the Australasian Paediatric Endocrine
Group and was a board director of the Australia MedicAlert
Foundation. He is also a Professorial Fellow at the University of
Melbourne.

Interest in shares and options
1,712,500 ordinary shares.

Committees
Member of the Rernuneration Committee and a member of the
Audit Committee.

Directorships held in other entities
I

Appointed to the board
31 October 2001

Last elected by shareholders
20 October 2005

Qualifications
MD, PhD

Expernence-«-*""""“‘_‘

Stantey Crooke is Founder, Chalrman and Chief Executive
“Officer of Isis, which is a world leader in th@ field of antisense.
Dr Crooke is rurrently a msinber githe Board of Directors of
Northein Arizona University Arts and’ Scignces Adyisory
Counul Fiadstaff, Asizona-and-San. D:ego State Uﬁiversnty
BioScience, Cefiter for Scnentlﬁ\Adwsory Boar;;l “He is a
member c:f/tbg IBG-Advistry- Councd erem Dl’u dvisory
/oerd théEditorial Advisory Board  5f-Jormal-of Drug N 3,

oY

also Editor-In-Chief of Current Opinion in Antlcancer\Dngs and
Section Editor for Biologicals and Immunologicals for Expert

Opinion on Investigational Drugs, He has been appainted by
the American Association for Cancer Research to serve as a
member of the Californian State Legislative Committee.

Prior to founding Isis, Dr Crooke was President of Research and
Development for SmithKline Beckman Corporation and has

.also held a senior position at Bristol Myers. Dr Crool: is also an

adjunct professor at the University of California, San Diego

State University. He has authored over 435 publicatiuns and has
_edited 19 books. Dr Crooke is active in molecule and cellular

biology and pharmacology of antisense oligonucieatides.

Interest in shares and options
40,333,333 ordinary shares.

Committees
Member of the remuneration committee until 31 July 2006,

Directorships held in other entities
Dr. Crocke is currently chairman of Isis and a Director of EPIX

Medical Inc.
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REMUNERATION REFORT

This report details the nature a ‘é\; cunt of remuneration for
each director of Antisense Therapeuttq\uged and for the

key management personnel

The directors of Antisense Therapeutics le\d\!urlng the year

N

weare:

Mr Robert W Moses

har Mark Diamond

Dr Chris Belyea

Dr Frank Bennett {appointed 31/07/06)
Prof. Graham Mitchell

Prof. George Werther

Dr Stanley Crooke (retired 31/07/06}

The key management personnel of Antisense Therapeutics
Limited during the year were:

Dr Christopher Wraight

Dr George Tochas

Mr Phillip Hains {appointed 9/11/06}
Ms Katiryn Andrews (resigned 9/11/06)

Remuneration policy

The remuneration policy ensures that directors and senior
management are appropriately remunerated having regard to

their relevant experience, performance, the performance of the

Company, industry norms/standards and the generalp/a
enviranment as appropriate. The remuneratron poqu hag’
established o enable the Company }B artract, mm"r’rate and’
retain suitably qualified drrectors‘and senno(ﬁﬂéj

o
will create value 1or shareho lers: :- #

/Aﬁtrsen59 Therapegtr’cs.errted is responsrble for overseeing

-

the remuneratron ‘policy of the Company and for
recomrnendrng or making such changes to the policy as it
deems appropriate,

Non-Executive director remuneration

Objective

The remuneration policy ensures that non-executive directors
are appropriately remunerated having regard to their relevant
experience, performance, the performance of the Company,
industry norms/standards and the general pay environment as
appropriate.

ANNLUAL

ger‘nent who .

Structure

The Company’s constitution and the ASX Listing Rules specify
that the aggregate remuneration of non-executive directors
shall be determined from time to time by a general meeting.
An amount {not exceeding the amount approved at the general
meeting) is determined by the board and then divided
between the non-executive directors as agreed. The latest
determination was at the general meeting held on 13
November 2001 when shareholders approved the aggregate
\maxrmum sum to be paid or provided as remuneration to the
\ directors as a whole (other than the managing director or an

S wecutive director) for their services as $300,000 per annum.
Cﬁrintly, non-executive directors are remunerated to an

a‘ggr gate of $135,000 per annum, excluding superannuation

wheré‘ép{pllcable
1y \
The | manner in which the aggregate remuneration is

The bn?rd lis responsrb[e for reviewing its own performance.
Board éerformance is monitored on an informal basis
:throu hout the year and a formal evaluation is performed
/ an}r}uallyfolld\mng the end of the fiscal year.

/ &

e 't/\lo retsrement benefits are payable other than statutory
/éup ranndauon if applicable.

E/ ecu;we director and executive officer remuneration

7

e/e(u;/ Objéctive

The remuneration policy ensures that executive directors are
appropriately remunerated having regard to their relevant
experience, performance, the performance of the Company,
industry norms/standards and the general pay environment as
appropriate.

Structure  ,  ,, -

_The non-executive directors are responsnble for evaluating the
performance of the managing director, who in turn evaluates
the performance of all other semor executives. The evaluation
process is intended to assess the Companys business
performance, whether Iong-term strategic objectives are being
achieved and the achrevemen} of individual performance

abjectives.

The performance of the managing director and senior
executives are monitored on an informal basis throughout the
year and a formal evaluation is performed annually.

An evaluation was conducted during the year of the managing
director’s and senior executives’ performance.

REPORT 2007
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Fixed Remuneration

Executives’ fixed remuneration comprises salary and
superannuation and is reviewed annually by the managing
director, and in turn, the Remuneration Committee. This review
takes into account the executives’ experience, performance in
achieving agreed objectives and market factors as appropriate.

Variable Remuneration - Short Term Incentive Scheme

All executives are entitled to participate i the Empioyee Short
Term Incentive Scheme which provides for annual cash bonuses
for outstanding performance in the achievement of key
corporate and individual objectives. The Remuneration
Committee approves the issue of cash bonuses following the
recommendations of the managing director in his review of the
performance of the executives and the Company as a whole
against agreed Key Result Areas (KRA').

The Board approves Corporate KRA'S on an annual basis.
Personal KRA's are developed for each executive. The
maximum achievable bonus for an executive is 25% of the
executive's base salary. 30% of the bonus is tied to the
achievernent of Carporate KRA's and 70% to the achievernent
of Personal KRAS.

Executives are only eligible to participate in the scheme should
they achieve 60% of their Persanal KRAs and/or the Company
as a whole achieves 0% of the Corporate KRA's for the year
under review,

The bonus is calculated on a graded scale as follows:

Corporate KRA's
Bonus as a percentage

No. of KRA’s achieved of base salary

i N/A
2 B/A
3 2%
4 4%
5 6%

Personal KRA's
Bonus as a percentage

Percentage of KRA's achieved of base salary

>60% 2%
>75% 6%
>90% 10%
100% 14%

The board also has the ability to approve an additional 5%
bonus t¢ an executive up to @ maximum of 25% of the
executive’s base salary.

Variable Remuneration — Long Term Incentive Scheme
Executives may also be provided with longer-term incentives
through the Company's Employee Option Plan, tc allow the

executives to participate in and benefit from the growth of 1he/

Cornpany as a result of their efforts and to assist in motivating
and retaining those key employees over the long term. Due to

the speculative nature of the industry itjigota/pagpropriate to
grant the exercise of options subject to'the satisfz ction of -

traditional performance conditit:}v “Continued sevice is the”
condition attached to the vestiﬁg of the options. TheHoard at
its discretion determines the total number of optidns granted
to each executive. /’

/

7

/
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Cash salary e gy %g

- ar\d fees $. . Cash bonusAS . + Contribution $ -

Non-mcnetaryw oy Suparannuation s

e benef'ns S 3N

Directors  d#/ "

Mr RobeffV\f Méseé

T30 T

: 281,756 <0 i

Mr Mark Diamiand

23,433 ¢

Dr Chris Belyea - N 25,000 S B T g, :2,250
R Dr Frank Bennett Lo 22917 - L, s .
: Prof. Graham iitchell . © 25,000 - - 2250
Prof. George Werther - 25,000 N . 2,250
- DrStanley Crooke™. + < L2083 0 L m e e - )
C 376,756 18,615 ek © 33,333 8,324 ‘437,028
) Key Management Persannel R o :
- Dr Christopher Wraight ' 186,729 w38 - 18.100 2081 221,288
. DrGeorge Tachas 167,419 12891 T - 16,228 20877 198619
© Mr Phillip Hains 8250 - ¢ - - - 82,500,
Ms Kathryn Andrews? 3135 - A © 2778 . 37434
471,004 & 27,269 L. 37,106 at162 530541

* Detalis of remunerahon for the year ended 30 June 2006

The semuneratuon for each dnreczor and each of the key management personne! of the Company durmg the year was a5 follows;”

Short-term ) Post-Employment Share-based .
) “employee benefits )5l . Benefits - Payments AR
"\ Cash salary Non-monetary  Superannuation S . ]
and fees $  Cash bonus $ benefits$  Contribution 3 Options$ . . Total$
Directors ; By ) v o s
Mr Robert W Moses . 35,000 - o - 3150 . - 3850 - .. s
Mr Mark Diamond . 232,682 9,089 ST 21759 ¢ 5156 T 268686
Dr Chris Belyea - 25,000 . S . ~ . 2250 B 27 250 Dol
Prof. Graham Mitchell - . 25,600 s ; - - 2,250 . 27,250
Prof. George Werther -, 25,000 ) .'-! T v - 2,250 pro- 3RS0 - e
Dr Stanley Crooke! . 25000 .. s - - T 25,000;’_ » ) )
' 367,682 . 9089 . . ¢ - .. . ~31659 5156 .- 413586° i

Key Management Personnel

Ce DR

Dr Christopher Wraight . - 179,720 . 12,286 '
DrGeorge Tachas  —~ ~ ° "161,135°
' Lo :’M's Kathryn Andrews® | “io. - BA,490

Ms Natalie Korchev! : = 7 22817

79,560 "

~ .. DrJega lswarant

1 ,527,822

. StanIE) C!ooke retlrect



S bl B

22320 1

Options ) Options

.~ Granted . Exercised

Options

-, Lapsed.

Value ai  Option
Included i

Value of

Remuneration: Optnons yetto

. for the Year ; .

‘Perce

tage of Total

Remunefation for the

Year ti

at Consisted

Va[ue at; Grant Value at Exercise
: Date $ B Price $

Value at ime  © -

of Lapse $

., be Expensed

; . Directors

. MrMark Diamond | . - 35600 -

e i 35,600

30,444

o Key Management Personnel

é Br Chnstopher Wranght

7615

b 761100
4567 -




Performance based remuneration for the year ended 30 June 2007

Estimated Estimated Percentage Percentage
minimum of remuneration of remuneration

that is performance this is non-
performance based

Percentage of Total
Remuneration for the maximum
Year that consisted  value of banus  value of bonus
of cashbonuses  fortheyear$  fortheyear$ based

Mr Mark Diamond 637 62,520 - 9.22 90.78
7.44. 9256

Dr Christopher Wraight 650 51.207
754 92.46

Dr George Tachas 6.49 45912

Performance based remuneration for the year ended 30 June 20056
Mr Mark Diamand 3.32 63.610

Dr Christopher Wraight 5.83 49,250

Dr George Tachas 34z 44,051

Ms Kathryn Andrews 294 407707

Ms Natalie Korchey 5,780

Dr Jega lswaran 20,972

Employment contracts of key management personnel

Key Management Personnel  Notice Period

Dr Christopher Wraight Employee — 1 months notice
Employer — 2 months notice
Dr George Tachas 2 months notice P e : -
I . ‘\-\.
Mr Phillip Hains 2 months notice : // - e e
' 7 = T
a e T S
Meetmgs of directors ; ~ /:d___ RN o N

during the year were as follows / / - /P’_M‘“““-\ "“\:“ s S \\\
. P N \ ... Ry, - \\\\
. !-' ;,’. / ” -' ot ‘ . . "-\h‘\ \\\ \\‘\: \\\\\
Directors' Meetings [/ Committes Meetings N N
;, /,f // e \b\“:\\
] / s ,’ ,/ Audit Commlttee- Remuneration Committee~ S \\\ .
] - g ~ N ~
Number i r/’ / / Number . Number \\\\\\\ ~
eligible iNumbe) !r/ ohglble Number ~  eligible Number \\\ Y2
to attend Jattend%fj / '; J,to attend attended . to attend attended AN
I i i i \
Mr Robert W Moses 10 f po / 3 3 2 2
7 il
Mr Mark Diamond 10 ; ; 0 ;' / - -
N foir
Dr Cheis Belyea o | ][ 3 3 2 2
] i
DOr Frank Bernett 10 ;f f 9/ i - - 2 2
} : Lig
T
Prof. Graham Mitchell o [ [ g ff] . . 2 2
H [
Prof. George Werther 10 / i 10 f ;; 3 3 2 2
]
Dr Stanley Crooke : - I]r jj /-I ” . - - -
[ / f
/ [ //
annplaL. REPORT 2007 (221




As at the date of this report the Company had an Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee. Members of these committees
were as follows:

Audit Committee Remuneration Committee
Chairman: Dr Chris Belyea Mr Robert W Moses
Members: Mr Robert W Moses Dr Chris Belyea

Prof. George Werther Dr Frank Bennett

Prof, Graham Miichell
Prof. George Werther

indemnification and insurance of directors and other officers

Under the Company's constitution: ‘ )

a) To the extent permitted by law and subject to the restrictions in section 1994 and 1998 of the Corporations Act 2001, the
Company indemnifies every person who is or has been an officer of the Company against any liability (other than “or legal costs)
incurred by that person as an officer of the Company {including} liabilities incurred by the officer as a director or officer of a
subsidiary of the Company where the Company requested the officer to accept appointment as director,

b) To the extent permitted by law and subject to the restrictions in sections 199A and 199B of the Corporations Act 2001, the
Company indemnifies every person who is or has been an officer of the Company against reasonable legal costs incurred in
defending an action for a liability incurred by that person as an officer of the Company.

The Company has insured its directors, the company secretary and executive officers for the financial year ended 30 .une 2007.

Under the Company's Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities insurance Policy, the Company can not release to any third pirty or

otherwise publish cietails of the nature of the liabilities insured by the policy or the amount of the premium. Accordingly, the

Company relies on section 300(9) of the Corporations Act 2001 to exempt it from the requirement to disclose the nature of the
_ tiability insured against and the premium amount of the relevant policy.

Share options on issue at 30 June 2007

At the date of this report, the unissued ordinary shares of Antisense Therapeutics Limited under option are as follows:

Date of expiry Exercise price : Number under option

27 June 2013 $ 0072 3,650,000

mlght by virtue of the option, to Proceedings on behalf of Company
participate in any share issue of the Comp}ﬂy\

e

No person has applied to the Court under section 237 of the

.

During the year no.directors.or.employees exercised optlons Corporations Act 2001 for leave to bring proceedings on behalf
/h of the Company, or to intervene in any proceedings to which

Sha esssued as a resuit of the exercise of optror\s \the Company is a party, for the purpose of taking responsibility
shargs-of on behalf of the Company for all or part of thos:z proceedings.

Durlng the year ended-30 Tane 2 2007, 500 007, 500 ordin
Antisense The ape/ut esLinited were- 1ssued as a result of an‘*
No pfoceedangs have been brought or intervenad in on behalf
exercise f,opttons by an ogtionholder-not.a durector or
~ o o the C rqpany with leave of the Court under section 237 of

emplayee of the Campariy.
B, the Co\'poratlons Act 2001.
NN

/virtuiﬁft/he option to participate in any share issue of any \“\ \ \\
// otﬁ;r body corporate. \ \ \\
I'4 T, N
y AN
.

Jo persoryéhtitled to exercise aptions had or has any nght by\
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NON-AUDIT SERVICES CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The follewing non-audit services were provided by the entity’s In recognising the need for the highest standards of corporate
auditor, Ernst & Young. The directors are satisfied that the behaviour and accountability, the directors of Antisense
provision of non-audit services is compatible with the general Therapeutics support and adhere to good corporate governance
standard of independence for auditors imposed by the practices. The Company's corporate governance statement is
Corporations Act 2001. The nature and scope of each type of contained in the following section of this annual report.

non-audit service provided means that auditor independence

This report is made in accordance with a resolution of directors.
was not compromised,

Ernst & Young received or are due to receive the following

amounts for the provision of non-audit services: \m
Tax compliance services $4,792

Robert W Mases ‘
AUDITOR'S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION Independent Non-Executive Chairman

The lead auditor's independence declaration as required under

section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 for the year ended

30 June 2007 has been received and can be found below. .
Mark Diamond
Managing Director

Dated this 18th day of September 2007

Ell ERNST & YOUNG

AUDITOR'S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION TO THE DIRECTORS OF ANTISENSE
THERAPEUTICS LIMITED '

in relation to our audit of the financial report of Antisense Therapeutics Limited for the financial year ended 30 June 2007, to the
best of my knowledge and belief, there have been no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the
Corporations Act 2001 or any applicable code of professional conduct.

Crnste %Wtj

Emnst & Young

7
L A g A
N/

Joanne Lonergan
Partner

Dated this 18th day of September 2007
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

The board of directors of Antisense Therapeutics Limited (“the
Company"} is responsible for the corporate governance of the
Company and guides and monitors the business and affairs of

the Company on behalf of its shareholders.

The format of the Corporate Governance Statement is based
on the Australian S:ock.Exchange Corporate Governance
Council’s {"the Council") "Principles of Good Corporate
Governance and Best Practice Recommendations”.

In accordance with the Council’s recommendations, the .
Corporate Governance Statement must contain certain specific
information and must disclose the extent to which the

Company has {ollowed the guidelines during the period.

Where a recommendation has not been followed, that fact

must be disclosed, together with the reasons for the departure.
Antisense Therapeutics errteds Corporate Governance )
Statement is structured wrth reference to the Corporate
Governance Council’s pnncrples and recommendatrons whrch
are as follows:

Principle 1. Lay solid foundations for management and
ovemght

Principle 2. Structure the board to add value

Principle 3. Promole ethical and responsible decision rmkmg ‘

Principle 4 Safeguard integrity in financial reportung , ** ]

Principle 5. Miake trmely and balanced disclosure e

Principle 6. Respect the rights of shareholders -, -,

Principle 7. Recognise and man'aée risk ' l “

Principle 8. Encourage enhanced perlormanée‘ '

Principle ?. Remunerate fairly and reéponsibly

Principle 10. Recognise the legitimate interests of stakeholders

Antisense Therapeutics Limited's corporate governance
practices were in place throughout the year ended 30 June
2007 and were, as best the Company is able to assess, fully
compliant with the Council's best practice recommendations _
with the exception of two recommendations: one relating'tg’

regarding the establishment of a normnatlon cdrnmlttee The

For further infarmation on the corporate governance policies
adopted by Antisense Therapeutics Limited, refer to its
website: www.antisense.com.au

STRUCTURE OF THE BOARD

It is the role of the board of directors to represent and protect
the interests of the Company' Shareholders The board is
responsible for the corporate gmernance of the Company and
guides and monitors the business and.affairs of the Company.

¢

In furtherance of its responsibilities, the board of directors will:
T
> Review, evaluate, provide input into and approve, on a

regular basis, the Company’s corperate strategy;

> Monitor senior management’s performance and
mplementatron of stralegy and ensure approprrate

4

resources are avanlable

> Revrew evaluate and approve the Companys budget and
forecasts; _-! v s

> Review, evaluate, approve and monitor major resource

“allocatians and capltal investrments, and acqursrtnons and
divestitures; -

*>  Review and monitor the Fnancral and operatmg results of

the Company

> Review and evaluate the overall cerporate organisational
‘ structure the assignment of senior managemen!

; responsrblhtles and plans for senior management

’ development and successnon

- ,

> Rewew evaluate and approve compensatlon strategy as it

relates to senior management ‘of the Company;

.y ! .
> Review and ratify systems of risk management and internal
* compliance ané control, codes of conduct, and legal
oo, A
+y compliance;,

> Appomt and remove the managmg director [chief execut[ve
e offlcer) T — :

> Ratify the appointment and -where appropriate, the
removal 1of the. chlef financial ofﬁger and the company
secretary N b

reasons for these departures from e recommendatrons 7 S

explarned in the secti e

. _,_...w
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The skills, experience and expertise held by each director in IP and product outlicensing and in-licensing); knowledge of

office at the date of this report are included in the Directors’ capital markets in Australia and in the US and experience in
Report under the section headed 'Information on Directors’ an raising capital; broad scientific knowledge; medizal and
pages 14 to 17. The Company’s Board Charter stipulates thas at pharmaceutical experience and experience in running listed

least 50% of the directors on the board should be independent (public) biotechnology/biopharmaceutical companies.

directors. Directors of Antisense Therapeutics Limited are . . .
. . P . The skills and combined experience of the directors have been
considered to be independent when they are indepencient of . . o
. . . effectively applied to date and remain highly relevant to
management and free from any business or other relationship . . . o
that could materially inter ith th o of thei ensuring the appropriate stewardship of Antisense
interfere with the exerci ir
b exercise Gl the Therapeutics Limited. For these reasons the board does not

independent judgement. . . . .

P 1ies consider it necessary, at this stage, to appoint ar, additional
In the context of director independence, to be considered independent director merely for the purpose of abtaining a
independent, a non-executive director may not have a diract or majority of independent directors.

indirect material relationship with the Company. The board

. K . . o ) The term in office of each current director is as follows:
considers that a material relationship is ane which impairs or

inhibits, or has the potential to impair or inhibit, a director’s Name Term in Office
exercise of judgement on behalf of the Company and its Mr Robert W Moses 6 vears
shareholders.
: Mr Mark Diamond b years
From a quantitative perspective, an item is considered to be
quantitatively immaterial if it is equal to or less than 5% of the Dr Chris Belyea 7 years
relevant base amount. It is considered to be material (unless Dr Frank Bennett 1 yaars
there is qualitative evidence to the contrary) if it is equal to or . ]
greater than 10% of the relevant base amount. Prot. Grahom Mitchell 6 years
In accordance with the definition of independence above, and Prof. George Werther byears
the materiality thresholds described, the following directors of To ensure the board is appropriately equipped to discharge its
Antisense Therapeutics Limited are considered to be responsibilities it has developed guidelines for the nomination
independent: and selection of directors and for the operation of the board.
Mr Robert W Moses As the Antisense Therapeutics Limited's board is not a Iafge

. . board, a formal nomination committee has not been
Independent Non-Executive Chairman ’

established, as it is perceived that no real efficiencies would be
Prof. Graham Mitchelt

Independent Non-Executive Director

gained from the existence of such a committee. The charter of
the nomination committee has been incorporatad into the

Dr Chris Belyea Board Charter and by this action the board of directors
Independent Non-Executive Director . considers all matters that would be relevant for a nomination
committee. For additional details please refer to the Company's

As stated above, the Company's Board Charter stipulates that Board Charter on its website.

at least 50% of the directors of the board shoula Se

independent which is consistent with the current board The board has procedures to allow directors, in the furtherance
structure. The Council's Recommendation 2.1, however, is: of their duties, 10 seek independent professional advice at the
"A majority of the board should be independent directoss'. Company’s expense.

The current board of Antisense Therapeutics Limited fwith thg ™~ ~Aspar of its commitment to recognising the legitimate
exception of Dr Frank Bennett) was selected and established interests of stakeholders, the Company has established a Code
before it listed on the Australian Stock Exchang; ('ASX) in of Conduct to gwde compl:ance with legal and other
December 2001. Each director was spemfucally selected in rder oblagatuong‘ o legitimate, stakeholders

to provide the skills and experience to {Ulfl" the Companys The Company Thas. a ‘Code c)f “Practice - Buying & Selling of

rmission which is “to create, develop and commerc;allse fiGve Shares that regulates the deahngs by d:rectors and employees,

antisense pharmaceuticals”. The ex:stmg Board member

a combined experience to the Company wﬁuch mclu;!és
leading expertise in the field of antrsense techn Iogy

employees are aware of the legal restructao\s on trading in

experience in the clinical development oi therapeutlcs Company securities wh:le\ i possess.on of unpubllshed price-

commercialisation skills (for exan}pie expenence in technology, sensitive information. 0 N

\t\ .
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INTEGRITY 1N FINANCIAL REPORTING

In accordance with the board’s policy, the Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer have made attestations
recommended by the Council as to the Company's financiat
condition prior to the board signing this Annual Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee operates under a charter approved by
the board. It is the board's responsibility to ensure that an
effective control framework exists within the entity. This
includes ensuring that there are internal controls to deal with
both the effectiveness and efficiency of significant business
processes. This includes the safeguarding of assets, the
maintenance of proper accounting records and the reliability of
financial information as well as non-financial considerations.
The board has delegated the responsibility for the
establishment and maintenance of a framework of internal
control and ethical standards for the management of the
Company to the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee also provides the board with additional
assurance regarding the reliability of financial information for
inclusion in the financial statements. All members of the Audit
Committee are non-executive directors. The members of the
Audit Committee during the year were Dr Chris Belyea, Mr
Robert Moses and Prof. George Werther.

The Audit Committee is also responsible for the nomination of
the external auditor and for reviewing the adequacy of the
scope and quality of the annual statutory audit and half year

statutory review. The Audit Committee Charter can be found an
the Campany’s website. '

QUALIFICATIONS OF AUDIT COMMITTEE
MEMBERS

Dr Belyea, non-executive director and chairman of the Audit
Committee, was the managing director of Metabolic
Pharmaceuticals Limited, a listed Australian buopharmaceutlcal
company and is currently its Chief Scientific Officer. In these
roles he has experience with and knowledge of financial

reporting and risk management processes relevant to the
biotechnology industry.

Mr Moses draws on more than 35 years experience in the
pharmaceutical/ biotechnology industry. He has held the
positions Vice President of CSL Limited, managing director of
commercial law firm Freehills and spent 17 years in various
management roles at the multinational pharmaceutical
company EYi Lilly. For details regarding other non-executive
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Chairman positions currently held by Mr Moses, refer to
the section headed ‘Information on Directors’ on page 14 in the
Directors’ Report.

Prof. Werther is a Director of the Department of Endocrinology
and Diabetes at the Royal Children’s Hospital (“the
Department”) and the Centre for Hormone Research at the
hospital’s Murdech Children’s Research Institute {"the Centre”).
He is accoumable for and manages the financial budgets for
the Departrnent and for the Centre.

For details on the number of meetings of the Audit Committee
held during the year and the attendees at thuse meetings, refer

16 the Directors' Report under the section headed "Meetings of
Directors’ on page 22.

PERFORMANCE

Policies and procedures in place with respect to menitoring the
performance of the board are set out in the Directors’ Report

under the section headed ‘Remuneration Report’ on pages
1810 22. ’

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

It is the Company's objective to maintain a high quality board
and executive team by rermunerating directors at relevant
market conditions. To assist in achieving this objective the
Remuneration Committee remunerates directars and

. executives having regard to their performance and the

performance of the Company. P

The expected outcomes of the remuneration pglucies and
practices are to enable the Company to rotivate, retain and

attract directars and executives who I create value f/gz
shareholders. /
Details relating to the policy for performan valuatiof and
the amount of remuneystion (monetary a

non-monetary) p |d
to each director 32%0 each of the f:ve’h:ghest pmd (nor}v/a

director) executivés duringthe ye /are set ou} m the weczo'r/s
Report under/the section headed; Remuneratuon Report;)
pages 18 to 22. 1 / ; //’
The members of the Remuneratuon Comrmtte dunng the year
were all non-executwe dlreqtors being Mg Méses Dn‘Belyea Dr
Bennett- Prof Mitchell and Prof Werther. [?etalls relat}ng to
perfotmance evaluation ar’e set out in the Directors; ‘Report
under the section headed 'Remuneratio Report on pages 18
1022, lgor details on the qumber of meetmgs of th
Remuneratuon Commrttee held during thq year an the
attendees at those meeh?gs refer to the ‘Durectorsi Report
under the section headed 'Meetings }.. )

of D:reclors on page 22. ‘1‘
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TIMELY AND BALANCED DISCLOSURE

The board has designated the company secretary as the person
responsible for overseeing and co-ordinating disclosure of
information to the ASX, as well as communicating with the ASX.
In accordance with ASX Listing Rules the Company immecdiately
notifies the ASX of information concarning the Company:

1. that a reasonable person would or may expect to have a
material effect on the price or value of the Company's
securities; and

2. that would, or would be likely to influence persons who
commonly invest in securities in deciding whether to
acquire or dispose of the Company's securities.

RIGHTS OF SHAREHOLDERS

The Company respects the rights of its shareholders, and 10
facilitate the effective exercise of the rights, the Company is
committed to:

1. communicating effectively with shareholders through
ongoing releases to the market via ASX information and
- . general meetings of the Company;

2. giving shareholders ready access 1o balanced and
understandable information about the Company and
corporate proposals;

3. making it easy for shareholders 1o participate in general
meetings of the Company; and

4. requesting the external auditor to attend the Annual
General Meeting and be available to answer shareholder’s
guestions about the conduct of the audit, and the
preparation and content of the Auditor’s Report.

Any shareholder wishing to make inquirtes of the Company is
advised to contact the registered office. All public .
announcements made by the Company can be obtained /fro/rjj(‘:
the ASX’s website www.asx.com.au. A

AMNTISENSE THERAPEUTICS

RECOGNISE AND MANAGE RISK

The board has established a policy for risk oversight and
management within the Company. This is periodically reviewed
and updated,

The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer has
given a statement to the board that:

a) in accordance with “Best Practice Recommendation 4,17,
the financial statements are founded on a sound system of
risk management and internal compliance and control
which implements the policies adopted by the board; and

b} the Company’s “Risk Management and Internat Compliance
and Control System®, in so far as it relates to financial risk, is
operating effectively in all material aspects.

LEGITIMATE INTERESTS OF STAKEHOLDERS

The board acknowledges the legitimate interests of various
stakeholders such as employees, clients, customers,
government authorities, creditors and the community as a -
whole. As a good corporate citizen, it encourages compliance
and commitment to appropriate corporate practicesl that are

fair and ethical via its ‘Code of Conduct’.
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«, INCOME STATEMENT

fai]

Fo\r the Year Ended 30 June 2007

~
N

Parent Entity

2007

Note 006
% $
Revenue 2 486,83& 408,446
Cther incor'm; 2 .275,536 ' 76,416
Depreciaticn expenses 3 {15,399 (18,147)
Administraiive expenses 3 . {1,463, 17) {1,177.491)
Occupancy expenses 3 {101,939} (98.022)
Patent expenses ’ 3 (188,169) (216 136)
Research ond development expenses 3 (3.372,698) (2986969)
Share based payments ) . 3 {11,583} : i\ (13.018}
Research and'development exgeﬁses x 3 (445,534 (51,437,466}
..amortisation.of'inteilectuai’property s / ;
Loss before income tax Vs (4,835,963) S Gasza0n
Income tax: ékpehse_ ’ . /," 3 4 . - } f) -
loss shter tax  © / 4,835,963) ;j (5,462,401)
Overall operations"
Basic loss pér sﬁare (fents per share) 7a V - {0.95} _;;.53)
Diluted I.oss per sha-\ra;a {cents per share) 7b {0.95) 4 ' (1.53)
e

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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.BALANCE SHEET
As'at 30 June 2007
B ] Parent Entity
- : Note . 52007 K . 2006
- : s $.
A’SSEtS . N
< - hd _ -
Current Assets ' o ' o g
Cash and cash equivalents B 759,568 8,239,330
- Trade and other receivables ‘ - 9. 368,957 ° T Ct ‘91,593
Prepayments RS ¥ 66,407 - ' 318,327
Total Current Assets : . e 8,031,952 . . 8,649,250
- . " - N .
: ; -
Non-cugrgnt Assets 3 / .
Plant and equipment -« - . 10 17,817 1| 21,481
i . e - !
== - g )
. Intangible assets ;-"'i K 1 - ) § 445,534
Total Non-current Assets / 17,817 L/ ?1_57,015
. Fd
Total Assets 4 / 8,049.769 o ’," 9,116,265
T ; ; T - #
. ; /:, / ;
4 4 i
. liabilities - . ¢ s s ;
/ Ve IS f(
* Current Liabilities ; g . ;s
) - ¢ £ . a £
N N Bl T 7 7
Trade and other payables ‘,‘ : S13 1,913,817 - f; 216,453
- Provisjons N 15 59.148 AT 106577
— - — > - ; e — i
" Total Current Uabiiitiés}-" 17972,965 // . 323,030
o o E _A " = = =
N'on-cun:ent Li::ll::'llil'lesli.f / B
LT ' . o
% Provisions S o : 15 59,428 e -
B | - :
- Total Non-current Liabilities* C 59428 -
" Total Liabilities 2032393 - - 323,030
Net Assets 6,017,376 8,793,235
~ Equity
" Contributed equity ‘ ’ 6 39,263,360 : 37,214,839
Reserves ﬁ BT 750,486 - 738903
Accumulated losses (33,996,470} (29,160,507)-
Total Equity 6,017,376 8,793,235

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

A‘For the Yeér Ended 30 June 2007

.

-
.

Contributed Accumulated

equity Reserves Lossas Total Equity

Note $ $ $ $

As at 1 July 2006 33,836,565 725,885 (23,698,106) 10,864,344

lssue of shares . 16 3,600,000 - - 3,600,000

Exercise of options 16 100 - - 100

Transactio_ﬁ costs relating to share issues 16 (221,826} - - (221,826)

Loss for the period - - (5,462,40%) (5,462,401

Cost 0% share-based payments 7 - 13,018 - 13,018

‘ i s - .
As at 30 June 2006 . 37,214,839 738,903 £29.160,507) 8,793,235
= e = < - - - = \i, : i

Issue of shares 4 13 2,070,000 - e 2,070,000

Exercise of Options ;. PR 100 - oo 100
Transaction costs arising on share issues * 16 {21,579 - f- (21,579

R ; . . i
. . ) i

Loss for the period /.' - - -4,835963) (4,835,963)

_ Cost of share-based p’éyments‘ 17 - 11,583 to 11,583

As at 30 June2007. 39,263,360 750.486° (33,996,470}, 6,017,376

N . . I" . .
The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

:For the Yeer Ended 30 June 2007

- Note 1: -Statement of sngmﬂcant dccountmg policies

Corporate Information

The financial repo‘rt of Antisense Therapeutics Limited (the
Company) for the year ended 30 June 2007 was authorised for
issue in accordance with a resolution of the dlrectors on 18
September 2007, - *

.. Antisense Therapeutics Limited is a listed public company
- limited by shares incorperated and domiciled in Australia

V

whise shares are publicly traded on the Australian Stock

Exchange and has a Level 1 ADR program traded on the US

over-the-counter market.

-The princifnal activity of the Company is to utilie antisense

technology to develop therapeutics for rmportant human
diseases. - ) s

»

/
ks

Basis of Preparation
y

The financial report is a general-purpose financial report, which
‘ K ;

has been prepared in accorda‘nce with the  réquitements of the

Corporatuons Act 2001 and Australmn Account:ng Standards.

The financial report has been prepared on an accrualr' basis
and is based on hlstoncal costs. odified b)f the revaluation of

-selected non- current assets fmanc:al assets and financial

liabilities for.which ghe fair value basis of accounting has been
apblied. The'finan'ci'al repértl is presented in Australian dolfars.

Management is requnfed to make judgements, estimates and
assumptlons about cafrying values of assets and liabilities that

- are not readily apparént from other sources. The estimates and

associated assumptlons are based on historical experience and

- various other factors that are believed to be reasondbie under

the circumstance, the results of which form the basis of making
the judgements. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongeing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the-period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects bath current and future
periods.

ANTISEMS -

Judgements made by management in the application of A-IFRS
that have significant effects on the financial statements and
estimates with a significant risk of materiaf adjustments in the
next year are disclosed, where applicable, in the relevant notes
to the financial statements,

Accounting policies are selected and applied in a manner
which ensures that the resulting financial information satisfies
the concepts of relevance and reliability, thereby ensuring that
the substance of the underlying transactions or other events is
reporied.

The financial report complies with Australian Accounting
Standards, which include Australian equivalents to International
Financial Reporting Standards (" A-IFRS"). The financial report
also complies with International Financial lReporting Standards
(“IFRS"). !‘,‘

Statement of Compliance . '.

Except for the amendments to AASB 101 Presentanon of,
Financial Statements arising from ED 151 and Other
Amendrnents, which the Company has earlv adopted,
Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretatnons that have
recently been issued or amended but ard not yet effective have
not been adopted by the Cem’eany for the annual reporting
period ending 30 June 2007, These are outlined in the
following table. !

THERAPFUTICS




134, AASB 136, ’
AASE 1023 & AASB
1038]

information included in
internal management reports
is more detailed than that

- currently reported under

AASB 114 Segment
Reporting.

ANNUAL REPORT 2007

. ~ Application date Impact on Company's Application date
Reference Title Summary of standard financial report for Company

~ B f . . ’

AASB ™~ § Amendmentsto  +  Amending 1 January 2007 AASB7 is a disclosure . 1 July 2007
2005-10 _Australian standard issued as standard so will have no

- | Accounting a consequence of direct impact on the

Standards [AASB AASB 7 Financial amounts included in the -

132, AASB 101, Instruments:, Company'sfinancial. ., . |-

AASB 114, AASB | Disclosures. statements. However, the

117, AASB 133, : amendments will result in

| AASB 139 AASB 1, - . changes to the financizal

AASB 4, AASB 1023 . instrument disclosures

& AASB 1038] . included in the Companys s
B . e i- ‘fmancaal report : ) .

AASB | Amendmentsio ~ Amending standard | 1 March 2007 This is consistent with the 1 July 2067

20071 Australian | issuédasa " ) Company's existing '
; Accounting consequenceof - accounting policies for
Standards arising. ’ AASB Interpretation '{ share-based payments, so ,
* | from AASB 11 AASB 2 - Group - ] the standard is not expected |
interpretation 11 and Treasury Share g to have any impactonthe |
.. liasse2) P /,Tr'ansactions. ’ Company's financial report. / o
’ - 5 f
- - = ; T ; . g TR
AASE . - | Amendmentsto ;’( " "Amendinig > . "~ {1 January 2008. *Thé Company currently has’ ; 1 January2008
2007-27 | Australian - ! standard issued as ‘ * . noservice concession /1 |y
Accounting a,consequence.of , arrangements or public- / '
Standards® ansmg AASB Lo - ¢} private-partnerships PEP),- - -
frorn AASB‘ * Interpretation-12 ; so'the standard is not: '
| tnterpretatlon 12 !/ Service Concession expected to have any .4 R
[AASB 1,AASB 17, Arrangementss T . impact on.the Company 5. }
AASE 118, AASB - N fmancnal report .
120, AASB 121, _ ‘ "
AASB 127, AASB - . : . T
131 & ‘AASB 139] . s e
‘ on 5 o z - .

P I . N ' T - T
AASB Amendments to Amending 1 January 2009 - AASB 8isa d!sciosure 1 July 2009
20073 Australian standard issued as .l ."l standlard SOWI" have.no-direct . .

o 7| Accounting” | a corsequence of - A1 impact on- the am(punts ' .

Standards arising AASB 8 Operating 'mc!uded inthe Company s _
| from AASB BIAASB. |  Segrents. P | fihanial statéments. However { ©
* | 5, AASE, AASB 6, * 4 o| the standard is expécted to ‘4" R
' AASB 102, AASB have animpactonthe «. '« <
107, AASB 119, w1 Company's segment
AASE 127, AASB ' disclosures as segment

(361




- Reference. |

Application date

Impact on Company’s

Application date

Title Summary of standard financial report for Company
AASB ‘Amendments to Amendments arising as | 1 July 2007 These amendments are 1 July 2007
20074 . I Australian -a result of the AASB expected to reduce the
Accounting decision that, in extent of some disclosures
Standards arising principle, all options in the Group’s financial
| from ED 151 and that currently exist report.,
Other Amendments | under IFRSs should be
-{AASB 1,2, 3,4,5,6, 1.included in the
7,102,107, 108, 110, { Austalian equivalents
112,114, 116,117, to IFRSs ard additional
118, 119,120,121, Australian disclosures
127, 128, 129,130, should be eliminated,
131,132,133, 134, other than those now
135, 137,138, 139, considered particularly
141, 1023 & 1038) relevant in the
‘ ‘ Australian reporting ’
environmept,
AASE Amendments to This Standard makes 1July 2007 This amendment only 1 July 2007°
2007-5 Australian amendments to relates to Not-for-Profit
. Accounting 3 AASB 102 Entities and a5 such is not "
Standard - -1 Inventories. expected to have any i
Inventories Held for* s impact on the Company's,
Distribution by Not- Ve financial report.
for-Profit Entities e
[AASB102] - s ) .
AASE " Amendmentsto ] Amending standard 1 January 2009 The amendrments to/AASB " | 1 July 2009
20076 . Australian Y “ 1 issued asa 123 require that all ;
Accounting / consequence of ' borrowing costs associated
Standards arising revisions to AASB with a qualifying asset be
. 1. from /}ASB 123 - 123 Borrowing Costs ' capitalised-The Company
[AAS§ 1, AASB 101, has no borrowing costs
AASB 107,AASB associated with qualifying
111, AASB 116 & asséts and as such the
i AASB 138 and amendments are not
,‘lnter;‘;re(étations = expected to have ary
1 & 12} impact on the Company's
! financial report.
AASB Amendments to Amending standards | 1 July 2007 - The amendments are minor | 1 July 2007
2007-7 Australian for wording errors, and do not affect the
Accounting discrepancies and recognition, measurement
Standards [AASB 1, inconsistencies. or disclosuré requirements
AASB 2, AASB 4, , of the standards. Therefore
AASBE 5, AASB 107 the amendments are not
& AASB 128] expected to have any
impact on the Company's
financiat report.
AASB7 Financial New standard 1 January 2007 Refer to AASB 2005- 1 July 2007
instruments: replacing disclosure 10 above,
Disclosures requirements of AASE

130 Disclosures in the
Financial Statements
of Banks and Similar
Financial Institutions

and AASB 132
Financial Instruments; !
Disclosure and

. )
Presentation.
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and
Impairment

Financial Reporting and

_the impairment

reduirements relating to

1, Goodwill in AASB 136
Impairment of Assets
and equity instruments

P -
classified as available for

salein AASB 139

Financial Instruments:
A Recognition and

Measurement.

which are to take
precedence over the more
general staternent in AASS
134, are not expected to
have any impactonthe  /
Company's financial report.

w ' . S

H

. - - Application date Impact on Company’s Application date
Reference .. Title Summary of standard financiat report for Company
AASB 8 Operating New standard 11 January 2009 Refer to AASB 2007-3 above. 1 July 2009
T Segments replacing AASB 114
Segment Reporting,
which adopts a ,
T management ,
..approach to
segment reporting.
AASB 123 | Borrowing The amendments to 1 Jdnuary 2009 Refer to AASB 2007-6 above. 1 July 2009
{armended) Costs AASBE 123 require that '
1 -7 all borrowing costs . ’
associated with a .
3 qualifying asset must -
' be capitalised.
AASB Interim Addresses an -~ 1 November 2006 } The prohibitions on 1 July 2007
Interpretation | Financial inconsistency between reversing impatrment lossés
10 Reporting AASB 134 Interim in AASB 136 and AASB 139,

AASB
Interpretation
11

.'.‘ 7
AAS%? 2 /7
Group and

‘ Trea‘.‘:uryr.Share
} Transactions
1 +

j
1
i

o8
&

5

Addresses whether
certain types of share-

, based payment
transactions with

employees-(or other

- suppliers'of good and:
services) should be,
accounted for as equity- |

settled of 'as Cash-

settled transactions
under AASE2 Share-
based Payment. it also

specifies the accounting
in a subsidiary’s financial

statements for share-

based payment

arrangements involving

equity instruments of

the parent.

1"March 2007

1 July 2007

AASB
Interpretation
12

Service
Concession
Arrangements

Clarifies how operators

recognise the
infrastructure as a

financial asset and/or an
intangible asset - not as

property, plant and
equipment.

ANNUAL
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following is a summary of the material accounting policies

adopted by the Company in the preparation of the financial
report. The accounting policies have been consistently applied,
unless otherwise stated.

{3} Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the entity and the revenue can
be reliably measured. The following specific recognition
criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised.

Interest — contrel of the right to receive the interest payment.

{b} Government grants

Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and all grant
condltlons will be complied with.

When the grant relates to an expense ltem itis recogmsed as

income over the periods necessary to match the grantona

systematic basis 1o the costs that it is expected to compensate.
2 !

{c} Borrowing costs . -7

- -/
Borrowing costs are expensed as incurred.

S O

(d} Leases s : RN

. L4 ‘/ B

The minimum lease payments of operating leases, where the

lessor effectively retains sub/sfantiaily all of the risks and
benefits of ownership of the leased item, are recognised as an
expense on a straight-liné basis.

(e} Cash and cash’ equrvalents -

Cash-and short- term deposuts inthe balance sheﬂt compnse
cash a1t bank and in hand and short-term deposits with an
original maturity of th-ee months or less.

For the puiposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined
above.

{f): Other receivables
Receivables are recognised and carried at original invoice

arnount less an allowance for any uncollectible amounts.

An allowance for a doubtiu! debt is made when there is
objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect
the debts. Bad debts are written off when identified. -

{g) Foreign currency translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are converted to local
currency at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the
transaction.

Amounts payable to and by the Company outstanding at
reporting date and denominated in foreign currencies have

ANTISENSF

been converted to local currency using rates prevailing at the
end of the financial year,

Al exchange differences are taken to the income statement.

{h} Income tax,
Deferred incoime tax is provided on all temporary differences at

the balance date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and theif carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred income 1ax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences except where the deferred income tax
liability arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability’
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting loss nor
taxable profit or loss.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary différences, carry-forward of unused tax assets&and
unused-tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that faxable
profit will be available against which the déductible ternporary
differences, and the carry:forward of unused tax assels and
unused tax lcsses can be utilised except-'wgere the deferred
income tax asset relating to the deductible’termporary
differences arises from the initial recognitio;n of an asset or

liabifity in a transaction that is not a‘b-usiness combination and,

at the time of transaction, affects neither the accounting loss
. . >
s '
;
The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed

nor taxable profit or oss.

at each balence sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be ]
available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to
be utilised. . - .

i

Deferre@ income tax assets"/z;nd liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expectéd o apply to the year when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based or 1ax rates (and tax
laws) that have‘béen enacted o1 substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date.

income taxes relating to items recognised directly in equity are .

recognised in equity and not in the income statement.

(i) Goods and services tax {GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the
amount of GST, except:

> where the GST incurred on a purchase of goods and
services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in
which case the GST is recognised as part of the cost of
acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item as

applicable; and

> receivables and payables are stated with the amount of
GST included.

s
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Cash flows ansmg from operating activities are mcluded in the
cash flow statement on a gross basis (i.e. mcludmg GST) and
the GS5T component of cash flows arising from invesiing and’
Eipéncihg activities, which is recove_r.abi_e from, or payable to,
the taxation authority are classified as'eperating cash flows.
Cornmltments and contingencies are disclosed net of the |
amount of GST recoverable from or payable to, the taxation,
authority. The, net amount of GST recoverable from or payabfe
to, the taxation authonty is included as part of the receivables
or payables in the balance sheet. o

(i) Plant and Equ:pment

v«
Plant and eqmpmem are measured at cast and are deprecrated
over their use{ui economnc hves as follows:

4
e

Lafe Method T

ne s,

Plant and eguipment 3-S5 years’ Strpigiwt line

The carrying values of plant and equnpment are rewewed for
impairment when events or changes incircumstances mdlcate

the cafrying value may not be rec0verable If any md|Catlon of -

impairment exists and where the,carrymg value exceeds the ' >

estimated recoverable amount" the assets aré wiitten down to
f
their recoverabie amount, 7 ) /
'

fk). ‘intangible'assets\ ; e

I P e T

Intangible agsets are |nmally rneasured at cost.. Fol!owmg initial ,
recognition,. mtangrble ‘assets are carried at cost Iess any wq
accumnulated amomsatuon and z any accumulated lmpaurment
losses. The useful hves of mtangnble assets are assessed to bé

either finite or mfmlte Intanglble assets with fumte fives' are - ; &

amortised over the usefu1 fife and assessed for u'npalrment
whenever there is ani mdlcat:on that the mtang|ble asset may /be
impaired. The amomsauon period and the amortisation 1.
method for an mtanglbie asset with a finite.usefullifeis =+ -
reviewed at feast at each financial year end, Chénges in'the: .
expected useful life or the expected'pattern of consumptioniof
future ecenomic benefits embodied in the asset are accounted .
for by changmg the amomsataon penod or method as
appropriate, which is a change inan accountung est:maie The
amortisation  expense on mtang:ble assets with finite lives is
recagnised in the income statement in the expense category
consistent with the function of the intangible asset.

(I} Research and Developrnent Casts

Research costs are expensed as incurred,

An intangible asset“;;rising from aevelopment expenditure on
an internal project is recognised onfy when the Cempany can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset 5o that it will be available for use or sale, its
intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset,
how the asset will generate future economic benefits, the

P

.o

e

availability of resources 1o complete the development and the
ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the
intangible asset during its devélopment.
Fellox)\?ing initial ‘re‘cogniliioh of tffe deuelob'ment expenditure,
the cost model is applied requmng ‘the asset to be carried at
* ¢ost less any acnumulaled amortisation and accumulated

" Ampairment losses. Any expendnmre so capitalised is amortised
over the period of expected benefits from the, related project.

The carrying value &f an mtang:ble assét ans:ng fiom
--development expendlture is tested for lrnpa|rment annuaHy
" when the asset is ndt available for usé, or more frequently when
an indication of impairment arises during the reporting period.

{m) Impairment of plant and equipment . ,

“The carrying values of plant and equipment are reviewed for
impairment at each repofting date,swith recoverable amounts
being estimated when events or changes,in circumstances
:ndncate that the carrymg value may be mpanred

TR g e
" The recoverable amount: of plant and equlpin‘-ent is the hugher
of fair value less costs to sell.and value in yse! In-asessing

value in use, the estimated future cash ﬂows are discounted to

B

their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the' tm}e \ralue of ¥ money and the

nsls spetific to the asset. e ;
+

* An impairment eocists vwhen the car(rying value of an asset -
exceeds its estimated remverable amount. _The asset isthen -

‘written down.-to its recoverable amount e s N

w -
- A

:s {n) Payables. -7 7
Payables are carried at amomsed’{ost and represent liabilities
- for goods-and services provuded toithe Company prior to the
3.2, end of the financial ytar. 1hat are:tripaid and arise when the: w
Company becomes obl:ged to make future payments in
~respect of the purchase of these goods and serwces

(ro) Empio‘yee benefitd "¢ o T’
” (|) Wages, salaries and annualleave
» *liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary
) benefuts and annyal leave expected to be settled within 12 .
mionths of the reporting date are recogmsed in other provisions
" inrespect of employees’ service up to the reporting date.
‘They are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when
the liabilities are settled.

(i} Long Service Leave .

The liability for long service leave is recognlsed for employee
benefits and measured as the present value of expected future
payments to be made in réspect of services provided'by
employees up to the reporting date using the projected unit

eredit method. Consideration is given to expected future wage,

and salary levels, experience of employee departures, and
periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted

ANNUAL REPORT 2007
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using market yields at the reporting date on national

~government bands with terms to maturity and currencies that

match, as closely as possable to the estimated future cash
outflows, )

{p) Share-based payment transactions
The Company provides benefits to employees {including
directors} of the Company in the form of share-based payment

transactions, whereby employees are provided with long-term
incentives through the Company's Employee Option Plan.

The cost of these transactions with employees is measured by

refergnce to the fair vajue at the date at which they are granted.

The fair value was determined by an external valuer using a
binomial option pricing mode), further details of which are
given in note 21. The'cost of these transactions are recognised,
together with a correspondmg increase in equnty, over the

period inwhich the’ options vest, -
7
The cumulative expens'e recognised for equity-settled -

transactions at each reporting date until vesting dates reflects .

(i) the extent to which the vesting period has expired and {ii) the

number of awards that, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, will ultimately vest. No expenseis racognised for
awards that do not ultima}ély vest and an adjustment to the

‘expense is made for awards that will no longer vest. This
;opinian is farmed based on the Best available information at

{g} Contributed equity

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Any transaction costs
arising on the issue of ordinary shares are recognised directly in
equity as areduction {net of tax) of the share proceeds
received.

{r} Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated as net loss attributable to
members, adjusted to exclude costs of servicing equity {other
than dividends), divided by the weighted average number of*
ordinary shares, adjusted for any bonus efemnent.

Diluted earnings per share is calcylated as net loss attributable
to members, adjusted far:

> costs of servicing equity {other than dividends);

> the after tax effect of dividends and interest associated with
dilutive potential ordinary shares that have been recognised
as expenses; and

> other non-discretionary changes in revenues or expenses
during the period that would result Erom the dilution of
potential ordinary shares; divided by the weighted average
aumber of ordinary shares and dllptwe potentlal ordinary

shares, adjusted for any bonus element.

balance date, . i S !
n’ 7' o =
f 5 : -
B ; /
Note 2. Revenue and other income ) o .
E el - ” Parent Entity.
, . . 2007 2006
$ ) i $ s $ .
- p 3_, e . . . -
Revenue v )
tnterest from external parties P 486,832 : 408,446
Total revenue 486,832 408,444
Other income -
Government grants - 94,716
Foreign exchange gains/(losses) - realised {3.408) (14,591}
Foreign exchange gains/(losses} - unrealised - (3,709}
R&D Tax Concession 278,944 ' -
Total other income 275,536 . 76,416

ANTISENSE THERAPEWIICS
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~ - . . ) . ‘ Parent Entity
T R o 2007 2006
. - B ‘ § g
Depreciationex;;enseg o ) R d
Plant and equipment  * . . ) AR 18141
Total depreciation expenses ;. 15,399 ' 18,141
Administrative expens;es
Cornpi_iance expenses - ° B o 5 5 ' ) 274,343 . . 5, 152,164
Officg expenses, k VA - : 45,864 ] -34,389
Employee expenses L . 7‘ S _ 600,47? 650,752

Busirie;s develo;:;me'm expen-ses /'j . ) 539,33?; 340,186
Total administrative expenses - © 1’..-' T ab3017 ) 1},\17?,491
'Occa.‘lpan& expénses /,’ 7 e A ,' f 5‘\‘

Remt -, -~ E. -0)/ / : G T egery . ‘;’ }86;697

/ ; -

- Other expenses . ’ r/ / , . . 212194 _ j 11,325

\ Tota! occuparicy efoe-rﬁe_S/-'/ // ’ L ‘ R RS «?. !’J 98,022
Patent expenses ,'P , /'/ s ; - ,'(’ ff’
e At - - | o — . ~ v -

“Patent fees K .'f - = 7 - o 1_88,169 _ ’-«" 7 216,136
Total patent exp"eﬁ;e; !_z' BT e 188,169 ), : /f 216,136
Research and develoipm}efn.t expensesw . - e /w”_-?‘ 7

ATL laboratory \k‘ ’.::1 - ) ‘ ‘ 81,095 .,; ‘ 664,182

REDATL1102 , ‘ o L anem /‘ _ ;1,149,325
Admi‘niétra'ti‘ok support " ' R S /3:148‘ ( ' .
Clnican/imedigatorteavel - T -
RED ATL 101, B B Y - 112,905

REDATL1I03 - .. ) e 617175 373,347

R&D staff costs A o srarz 687,230
Total research and development expenses ) ) N 3,372,698 2,986,986

SHare based ;;ayments ) ' . -. 11,583 7 13,018
Research and development expenses - amor:isat-ion of intellectual property '445,534 711.437.466
Total expenses 5,598,331 L. o263 ™

Note 3. Loss for the year
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Note 4. income Tax Expense

S ) Parent Entity
) 2007 2006
Nate S %
{a} The components of tax expense comprise:
Currént tax (1,582,056} (1,329,778)
Deferred tax . 14 (246) © (6,859)
Under/{aver} provision in respect of prior years 16,042 (13,035
(1,566,260) {1,349,671)
&) Theprima facie tax on loss from ordinary activities before
intome tax is reconciled 1o the income tax as follows:
Prima facie tax payable on loss from c;rt_:!inary activities . (1,450,789 (1,638,720)
befare income tax at 30% (2006 30%) -
Y 5 z ; ' 7 T
“Add: g iy )
Tax effect of: //' C : 5 :
Entertainment e e Fo 425
] j v vl N o . '
Amortisation ?f intellectual property 133,660 ; 431,240
i 7 = = - - e T
Legalexpenses a1 S -
Share based paymints, - 34757 R - .
; / . . : *(1,312,558) {1,207,055)
. = - e - j,‘ =
Le;s: . =
Tax effect of: // i
-+ Research :,l'land developriiert tax concession - (236,221) {36,192)
- Section 40-880 deductions , (33,523 {93,389)
. ) S {269,744) _(129,581)
Benefit of tax losses not brought to account . 1,582,302 1,336,636
Income tax attributable to entity - -
The applicable weighted average effective tax rates are as follows: ~ 0% ' 0%

ANMTISENSE THERAPEUTICS



Note 5. Key managemént personnel compensation

(a) Directors -

The following persans were directors of Antisense Therapéutics
Lirnited during the financial year :~

Name " . Position

Mr Robert W Moses | Independent Non-Executive Chanrman

Mr Mark Diamond Managing Director

Dr Chris Belyea. Independent Non-Executive Director

Dr Frank Bennett Non-Executive Director

{appointed 31/07/06) ~ . O

Prof. Graham Mitchelt independent Non-Executive Djreétor ‘

Prof. George Werther - Non-Executive Director .~
- s

Dr Stanley Crooke Non-Executive Directof
(retired 31/07/04} 7

A
{b) Other key management persgn)nel

The following persons had- authdrity and respoﬁsibiiity for
planning, directing and cont(ollmg the aCtIVIttES of the
Company, dlrectly or.r. uectly durlng the financial year: -

f

Neme R ’- ""e?;/ Posmon

Dr Christopher Wralghft Re;;earch Director

Dr George Tachas ™ ./

/ Chief Financial Officer
' & Company Secretary

-

Mr Phillip Hains 3
(appointed H11/06) '

.
i
|3
:

Ms Kathryn Andrews i
{resigned 9/11/06)

Chief Financial Officer
‘,L & Company Secretary

i

.

(c) Key management personnel compensatlon pohqr

Remuneratlon pohcy

The remuneration poircy ensures that dnrectors and senior
management are appropriately remunerated having regard to
their relevant experience, performance, the pedormance of the
Company, industry norms/standards and the general pay
environment as appropriate. The remuneration policy has been
established to enable the Company to attract, motivate and
retain suitably qualified directors and senior management who
will create value for shareholders.

ANNUAL
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Remuneration committee

The Remuneration Committee“of the board of directors of
Antisense Therapeu't‘ics'l.imited is responsible for overseeing
the remuneration policy of the Company and for
recommending or making such changes to the policy as it
deems appropriate. .

MNon-Executive director remuneration

Objective

. The remuneration policy ensures that non-executive directors
.- are appropriately remunerated having regard to their relevant

experience, performance, 'the performance of the Company,

_industry normsistandards and the -general pay environment as

appropriate.

Structure

. The Company's constitution and the ASX Listing Rules specify -

that the aggregate remuneration of non-executive directors
shall be determined from time to time by a general meeting.

-An amount (not exceeding the amount approved at the general

. . . [
meeting} is determined by the board and ‘lhep divided
between the non-executive directars 3s agreed. The latest

‘determination was at the general mee\iﬁg held on13

Novernber 2001 when shareholders” approved the aggregate

maximum sum to be paid or prowded as remuneratlon tothe -~

directors as a whole (other than; the managmg director or an
executive director) for their se;wces as $300 000 per annum.
Currently, non-executive dlrectors are remunerated toan
aggregate of $135,000 per annum, excludmg superannuation

’

where applicable. p

K ‘/‘
The manner in which the aggregate remuneration is
apportioned amongst non-executive directors is reviewed

periodically.

ra
The Board is respansible for reviewing its own performance.
Board performancé is manitered on an informal basis

“ throughout the'year and 2 formal-evaluation is performed

annually following the end of _ti:é fiscal year.

No retirement benefits are payable other than statutory
superannuation, if applicable.

REPORT 2007

-




[45]

Executive director and executive officer remuneration

Objective

The remuneration policy ensures that executive directors are

" appropriately remunerated having regard to their relevant

experience, performance, the performance of the Company,
industry norms/standards and the general pay environment as
appropriate, ’

Structure

The non-executive directors are responsible for evaluating the
perfoimance of the managing director, wha in turn eviilluates
the performance of all other senior executives. The evaluation
process is intended 10 assess the Company's business
perforrance, whether long-term strategic objectives are being
achieved and the achievement of individual performance
objectives.

The performance of the managing director and senior -. _
executives are monitored on an informal basis throughdut the
year and-a formal evaluation is performed annually.

An evaluation was conducted d,ufing the year of the managing
director’s and senior executives’ performar}ce'.

Fixed Remuneration ‘

Exé;utives’ fixed remunération com/prises salary and
superannuation and is reviewed annually by the managing
director, and in turn, the Remuneration Committee. This review
takes into account the executives' experience, perfarmance in
achieving agreed objectives and marke factors as appropriate.

1
4

|

{d] Key management personnef compensation

Variable Remuneration - Short Term Incentive Scheme

Al executives are entitled to participate in the Employee Short
Term Incentive Scheme which provides for annual cash bonuses
for outstanding perfarmance in the achievement of key
corporate and individual objectives. The Remuneration
Committee a;;proves the issue of cash bonuses following the
recornmendations of the managing director in his review of the
performance of the executives and the Company as a whole
against agreed Key Result Areas (KRAS).

Variable Remuneration - Long Term Incentive Scheme

Executives may also be provided with longer-term incentives
through the Company's Employse Option Plan, to allow the
executives 10 participate in and benefit from the growth of the
Company as a result of their efforts and to assist in motivating
and retaining those key employees over the long term.. Due to
the speculative nature of the industey it is not appropriate to
grant the exercise of options subject 1o th_\e satisfaction of
traditional performance conditions. Continued service is the
condition attached to the vesting of the options. The board at
its discretion determines the total number of options granted
to each executive,

The aggregate compensation made to directors and key management personnel of the Company is set out below:

Parent Entity

‘ 2007 ) 2006

7 $ : $

Short-term employee benefits 893,644 925.§B9
Post-employment benefits 70439 78,257
Long-term benefits - -
Termination benefits - -
Share;base.d payments 12,486 . 10,312
76,569 1,014,558

ANTISENSE
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(e} Key management personnel compensation

The\compensatiqg of each director and member of the key

management personnel of the Company for the current year is set

out BEIQ\W: - .
s - éhort-term employment b’ene‘ﬁL‘s; i ©f7]- » -Post Errylvployment Benefits
Cash, salary " .7 Non-monstary [ 2 Super .

‘ ) &tees  Cashbonis ‘ benefits Cther annuation Other
2007 - 3 $ 3 $ 3 s
Mr Roben'W Moses 35,000. - . - 3,150 .
Mr Mark Diamond 241,756 18,615 . ¢ -t 23433
Dr Cheis Belyea 25,000 I R R
Dr Frank ?e_en_nett {appointed 31/07/0¢6) 22,?i7. ' - . - : - _ - -
Prof. Graham Mitchell 5000 - - -t 2m0 -
Prof. George Werther '-E,”/ 25,000 B - el 2,250 « -
Dr Stanley Crooke (retired 31/07/06) 2083 - ; B P -
D Christopher Wraight -/ 186,720 14,378 ol - i
Dr George Tachas L’ ' /'1‘67,419 12,89 - J " " ;’3 , 36,22;3 L - ‘_
Mr Phillip Hains {appointed 91‘11/06} / 82,500 - - - j’f ; L, -
Ms Kathryn Aadrews (resig'r’;ed 9/t 1(/,06/) - 34,356 - - S ; _fﬁ 2778 -

; (,f; ¢ 847,760 45,884 R 70839 ¢ - -
; ST B P W
o ' o { “,e . i - Share‘gbégsed payrh;rfts Lot
) ’ o Other long term Equity-settled | -~ / ' ‘

e oy employee benefits Shares Options”  Cash-settled Other "~ Total
2007 {cont.) \ if . g : 4 ) S $ s
M Robert W Moses ‘1 . - . - - ¢.}~,§: s - 38,150
Mr Mark Diamond ; : 8,324 / ae e ; 292,128
Dr Chris Belyea - S . /-' o - - 27,250
Dr Frank Bennett {-appointed, 31/07/06) - - - - - 2297
Prof. Graharm Mitchels . - . . - 37,250
Prof. George Werthes - - - - - 27,250
Dr Star_'liey Crooke {retired 31/07/06) - . - - - 2,083
Dr Christopher Wraight - - 2,081 . - - 221,288
Dr George Tachas - - 2,081 - - 198,619
Mr Phillis Hains {appointed 9/11/06) " - ] . T 82,500
Ms Kathryn Andrews (resigned 9/11/06) . ; . - N VAL

. - 12,486 . - 976569
\_\k ~
AN
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. The compensation of each director and member of the key management personnel of the Company for the prior year is set out below:

Short-term employment benefits Post Employment Benefits
- Cash, salary T Ndn-monet-azy ) Super- .
© & fees Cash bonus benefits Other annuation Other
2006 $ 3 % $ $ 3
Mr Robert W Moses . 35,000 - - - 3,150
M Mark Diamond 232,662 9,089 . - sy
Or Chr_is Bélyea 25,050 - - . 2,250 -
Prof. Graham Mitchell 25,000 B - 2,250 -
. Prof. George Werther 25000 . - - - 2,250 -
Dr Stanley Crooke {retired 31)0?/06} 25,000 - - - - - -
Dr Christopher Wraight: 179720 P 12,286 - , - 17,281 -
" Dr George Tachas 161,135 6,294 B - . 15,069 .
‘ Ms Kathryn Andrews (resigned 9/1'1/06)’ 84,4‘_?_.0‘"‘ 2814 - - 3 7.858 _ .
Ms Matalie Korchew (resigned 20/6/06) 22917 - ) -1y 2082 .
Mr Jega [5was-'a.n (resiéned 1‘{[/1‘0/05) x 79,560 - - - 4,328
// 395,504. 30,485 - + 78,257 o
Share-based payments
¢ . Other long term y ECtufty-settle‘d e N v -
. z employee benefits Shares Options  Cashesettled ~ Other Totat
?006 (cont.)‘ ‘ ) - $ 3 o .-S - % 3
Mr Robert W Moss';-s ) ' ; . ; . - 38,150
© Mr Mask Diamond.‘i{ { - - §,156 /-’ B - 268,686
Or Chris Belyea l - - - - - 27,250
Prof. Graham Mitchell - - < - . 27,250
Prof. George Werther - I - - R 21,250
Dr S‘:anley_ Crooke (retired 31/07/06) ——-_— - . - - - 25,000
Dr Christopher Wraight - - P 1,289 - - 210576
Dr George Tachas - - 1,289 - - 183,787
Ms Kathryn Andrews {resigned 9/11/06) - - 713 - - '9.5,9-‘3?
Ms Natalie Korchev (resigned 20/6/06) - . 516 . - 25495
Mr Jega Isvv;'aran {resigned 11/10/05) - - 1,289 - - 85177
- 10,312 - - 1,014,558

ANTISEMSE THER
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(f} Share-based payments to directors and key management personnel’

During the 2006 financial year options were granted as equity compensation under the long-term incentive scheme to certain

directors and key management personnel as disclosed above. No share options were granted to the non-executive directors under

this scheime. Each option entitles the holder to purchase one ordinary share of the Company on exercise of the option. The options

expire on 27 June 2013 and have an exercise price per option of 7.2 cents.

-

The option holders may not exercise more than the following proportions of options on the ollowing dates:
N - e, . . . A

Prior to 27 Jure 2006

-

+

0%
Between 28 June 2006 and 27 June 2007 20%
Between 28 June 2007 and 27 June 2008 7 40%
Between 28 June 2008 and 27 June 2009 C60%
Betwqen 28 June 2009 and 27 June 2010 80%.
Between 28 June 2010 and 27 June 20112:3: ‘ 100%
'i?ne terms and con-dlitionshof' the grant: S ) ) E 1;
‘ Gfén_t Date . /fi SAJuly 2006 - ) j ," '
) Exercise pricé per option”/"‘ $0.072 ,f'j ; -
* BgiyDate ¢ / 27 June 2013 A
" Firét Exercise Date ;" !/ ’ 27 Jiine 2006 ' . / /
Last Exerciséjpate ff // ’ . 27 June 2013 7 ;/ .f;
{ S : L H
P AR /
. gf N £ t . , Y ‘ /!? " Fairvalue of
" ’ oo . 2006 72007 options at .
2006 NG| f;’ Grantec.!‘No. ~""Vested No. S/ Vested Ne”  grant.date
Mr Mark Diamond, Kf T '2,000,060 40(5,006 800,000 T 35,600 .
Dr Ghiistopher Wraight . ' /500000 100,000 200000. 890
DrGeorge Tachas .=, 500000 < 100000 200000 ' . , B9O ..
Ms Kathryn Andrews (resigned 9/11/06) * 300,600 '60,000 ‘ 120,000 < 5340
Ms Natalie Korchev (resigned 20/6/06) * 200000 40000 . 80,000 3,560
7 500000 00000 200000 8900

Mr Jega Iswaran (resigned 11/10/05} *

* options issued to employees who have subsequently resigned have been forfeited, see note 17.
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' . (g)'Options and rights

P49

“The number of options over ordinary shares in the Company held during the financial year by each director of Antisense
Therapeutics Limited and other key management personnel of the Company, including their personally related parties, are set out

]

e
[

23,874,500 -

ANTISENSE

THERAPEUTICS

below:"
Balance at start Granted as Net Change Balance at
of the year Compensation  Options - Other  end of the Vested and ]
{a) {b) Exercised {c) year (a) exercisable Unvested
2007 No. No. No. . Na. No. Na. No.
_ Directors
¢ Mr Robert W Moses . 125,000 - - {125000) . - - -
Mr Mark Diamond 2,075,000 - - (750000 2,000,000 800,000 1,200,000
Dr Chris Belyea (d) 337,000 . - - (337,000) - - -
Dr Frank Bennett (appointed 31/07/06) - - - - - - -
Prof. Graham Mitchell . - - . - - - -
Prof. George Werther . 12500 - - (12,500 - - -
. Dr Stanley Crooke (retired 31 HO7/06) (&) 20,000,000 - -+ (20,000,000 ot - -
~ - — . _ P .
. s / J £
Other key management personnel - / X
Ox Christopher Wraight - e 500,000 - - - 500,000 jf 200,000 300,000
DrGeorge Tachas () 625,000 - - (125000)  500000¢ 200000 300,000
Mr Phillip Hains {appointed 9/11/06) . . . - - -
7 Ms Kaxhryn Andrew:s (resiéned 9/11/06) 300,000 - - (300,CX/D) _';' - : - -
P _ (20574500) 3,000,000 1,200,000 1,800,000



[ UV UULEUU

¢

Net Change

Batance at start Granted as Balance at
R of the year Compensation Options Other  end of the Vested and .
e : ; {a} - . {b)-- Exercised” <} year (a} exercisable Unvested
2006: ‘ No. No. Neo. “ No. No. No. No.
- Di;gctors ) N . . -
Mr Robert W Moses - w50 - - S (S0000 125000 125000 .
M Mark Diamond - . 3075000 2,000,000 £ (30000000 2075000 475000 1,600,000
Dr Chris Belyea (d) 2337000 . - 00000 337,000 337,000 .
Prof. Graham Mitchel e 250,000 e - 50000 - ; c
Prof. George Werther 2,012,500 . -, (2,000000) 12,500 12,500 -
Dr Stanley Crooke (retired 31/07/06)f8) 22000000 -~ . - - (20000000 20,000,000 20,000,000 .
; — -
- et o e oA el v i * -
Other key management personnel X a -
Or Chrtstopher Wralght . 2/CKJOOOO ¢ 500,000 - (2,000@00) * 500,000 103 000 400,000
7 Dr George Tachas h 1,625,000 - 7 S(X) 000 - {1,500000 625.000 %25 000 400,000
.+ MsKathiyn Andrews (esigned 9111/06) Lo 300,000 o . - 300000 f; ‘60000 240,000
,Ms Natalie Korchev (rgsigned{Zf)/b/Oé} /'/200,000 200,000 - (ZOQ.OOO) 200,(1095 ',’ 40,000 160,000
 Mr.déga lswaran fresigned 11/10/08 7 625000+~ - 500,000 -+ 500000 625000 ,’225000 400000
’ = v // 34,499,500 4,000,000 +. (13,700,000) 24,799,500 21 599,500 3,200,000
* f LT i )' L 2 }-" . fﬁ
a) ~For those that were not»a dcrector or key management d} 277,000 options held by an entity jf which the director has a
5 personnel for the entire penod the opening balance is the *. beneficial interes}.f : he ; ca g g
. ‘balance when they wére appointed to the position. If they

remgned during the ‘period then the balance at the endof |
the yearis the balance when they resigned. A

b) < Further detail on the options granted to directors and key
_management parsonnel durmg the period canbe found in
* note 21. L

I

¢} This includes those options that have been forfeited by ’
“holders as well as options issued other than for ’
compensation during the year under review, or that have

- expired. | o e

ANNUAL REPO

ﬂx 62,5‘00-.opti0n5' Feld by an entity in which the key

e}- Options held b§ an entity in which the director has a
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management persénnel has a beneficial interest.
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. h} Shareholdings

tes1]

“The number of shares in the Company held during the financial year by each director and other key management personnel of
thé Company, including their personally related parties, are set out below. There were no shares granted during the peried

as compensation.

.

Balance at
start of the Granted as Options Net Change  Balance at end
- year {a) Compensation Exarcisad Other (b) of the year (a}
2007 No, No. No. No. No.
Directors
Mr Robert W Maoses 288,462 - - 600,000 888,442
Mr Mark Diamond 199,743 - - - 199,743
_ Dr Chris Belyea {c) » 500,000 - - - 500,000,
Dr Frank Bennett {appainted 31/07/06) - - - = -
“Prof. Graham Mitchell B PR - . "'; - -
Prof. George Werther L 1712500 - - g i‘ - 1,712,500
Dr Stanley Crooke {retired 31//07/06) ) e 40,333,333 - - . ; - ‘ 40,333,333
‘ £ ‘ )
7/ P
Other key management personnel” ’ s
Dr Christopher Wraight 1,687,500 . - - 1,687,500
Dr George Tachas (d) 250,000 - : - 250,000
Mr Phillip Hains {appointed 9/11/06) . - < S 41,500 415007
- Ms Kathryn Andfevi:'s [resigned 9/11/06) . - . . N
I-' 44,971,538 - - 641,500 45,613,038
///
Balance at
start of the Grantedas .~ Options Net Change  Balance at end
year {a} Compensation . Exercised Other {b} of the year {a}
2006 No. No. No. No. No.
Directors
Mr Robert W Maoses 288,462 - - - 288,462
Mr Mark Diamond 199,743 - - - 199,743
Dr Chris Belyea () 500,000 - v - 500,000
- Prof. Graham Mitchell - - - - -
Prof. George Werther 1,712,500 - - 1,712,500
Dr Stanley Crooke (retired 31/07/06}-(c) 40,333,333 - - 40:333,333
—_—— %
N

A
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" Other key management personnel

Dr Christopher Wraight 1,687,500 fa - - 1,687,500

Dr Geor.ge:fz‘achas ) 250,000 - - - 250,000

Ms Kathryn Andréws {resigned 9/11/06) h L - : - -

Ms Natalie.Korchev (resigh?éd 20/6/06) - LT , - - -

_ Mr Jega swaran (resigaed 11/10/08) - 250,000 - - 250,000
& 45221538 - o ;

45,221,538

%

. 3 w .
" a}l  Forthosé that were not a director or key management personnel for

the entire period, the opening balance is the balance when they '
were appainted ta the pasition. i they resigned during the periad
then the balance at the end of the year is the bafancg when

they resigned. 5 . . i

b  This inghucles shares that Fgave begn aquiréd on market,

- i

" {i} Loansto dlrectors and key management personnel

o

) Al shares held by'an entity in which the director has 2
benefnaal‘ :n:erest

- d) ?25 000 shares he!d by an entity in which the key management

personnel has a beneficial interest. . .

. :{ o N J‘\ .
ff‘

v

There were no loans made to dlrectors or ?}her key management personnel of the Company, including thenr personaily

related pames s /

W Other transactlons with key managem’gnt personnel

I ’ .
There were no further,stransactlons with directors or key management personnel not disclosed above orm note 23, e

{k} Contracts for ser\nces of key/;anagement personnet

4

Other key management personnel

e e e ot < / ] ¥

« - /
R // __/r; . s

# Peried of notiée to Terminate
- A [ -

Dr Christopher Wraféht,f - ' Emp’ldy’ée - 1 months rotice
] i P ] e . _Employer -2 rnonths notice
Dr George Tachas ! 2 ’

y . 2 months notice

‘Mr Phillip Hains ~ » -

3 months notice

. R

Note 6. Au‘ditotsu' {remuneration ] s
4 ' Parent Entity
2007 2006
$ $
- Remuneration of the auditor of the parent entityfor:
ayditing or reviewing the financial report . 34,320 32,960
taxation services 5 4,792 - 2,000
assurance related ) 3,996 - ‘3,39?
43,108 38359
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Note 7.Loss per share

2007 2006

b cents cents

8 Basic Loss per share D.95) (+53)

fo}  Diluted loss per share ©.95) (1.53)

(c} Reconciliation of earnings 1o loss s $

Loss used to calculate basic loss per share (4,835,963) (5,462,401)

Loss used in the calculation of dilutive loss per share (4,835,963} {5.462,401)

No. No.

{d) Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the 507,593,799 356,060,354
year used in calculating basic ioss per share

Weig‘r{ted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 507,593,799 - 356,060,354

during the year used in calculating diluted loss per share

(e) 6pt:or*:s that are considered 10 be potential ofarnary shares are excluded from the welghtedlaverage nﬁﬁbér of ordinary
» shares used in the calculation of basic lass per share. Where dilutive, potential ardinary shares are mcluded in the
caleulation of diluted loss per share. All the options on issue do not have the effect to dilute the 1oss per share. Therefore
they have been excluded from the calculatuon of diluted loss per share. There have been no other converstons to, call of, or
subscriptions ‘or ordmary shares or issues of potential ordinary shares since the reporting date and bef?re the completion of

’a
this financial report K
’

N N . i / -
Note 8.  Cash and cash equivalents

;

i

Parent EI‘"Iti_ty

2007

; 2006

) y $ 3

Cash at bank . . 1,096,588 1,239,330
i .

Termn deposits 6.500.000 - 7,000,000

7, 596 588 8,239,330

The interest rates on cash at bank and 1erms deposﬂs was 4.50%, 6.10% and 6.31% (2006 4.35% and 5. 72%} these deposns have an

average maturity of 60 days.

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents

Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the cash flow
statement is reconciled to items in the balance sheet as jollows:

Cash and cash equivalents

7,596,588

8,239,330

(53] AMNTISENSE
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Note 2. Trade and other receivables

Parent Entity

2007 . 2006
- .3 $
Interest receivable 61,367 35,244
input tax credits -~ 19732 35,033
Research and de\féiopmént tax concess-ion 278,944 ‘ -
Other receivables': 8,914 21,316
= 368,957 91,593
Note 10. Plant and equipment
B v Parent Entity
] L 2007 , 2006
_ . s $
Plant and equipment: » - . - s . ¥ : }ggl
- _ —r[ - (, o 7 T
Ateost - . i L 21532 £ 109,797
Accumulated depreciation ar;djér impairmegt/ o {103,715y - (r: ‘ f88,316)
Nest carrying amount ;": a 17,817 ‘;'! ‘.f 21,481
Balance at the beginning &f year / - " 21,481 ’ ji _;"r 38,350
. ] - ) . . ,"l i}
Additions <~ * f ,// L 1738 5 f.’ 1,272
Depreciation expenseﬁ'; ,f: T ’ - - (15,399 // /‘ ' {18,141)
N N ! ..
Carrying amount'at the erid of the yaar ; - 1 7,%17' // 21,481
DA /
e ,f‘
E s
. ‘ . . /
Note 11. Intangible assets : e
) K i O Parent Entity
. 2007 : : ' 2006
$ $
T - N H KR
Rights:
Cost 6,387,500 o 6,387,500
Accumulated impairment losses/amortisation tb, 387,500) (5,941,966}
Net carrying value - 445,534
Balance at the beginning of year 445,534 1,883,000
Amortisation charge 445,530) _ (1,277,500)
Impairment losses ; (159.966)
Carrying amount at the end of the year - 445,534 '
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Intangible assets have finite useful lives. The current >
amortisation charges in respect of intangible assets are

included under research and development expense —

amortisation of intellectual property in the income statement.

a) The intahgibl_e assets relate to certain rights granted to
Antisense Therapeutics Limited by Isis Pharmaceuticals Inc.
('lsis) upon listing of the Company. The main features of
the agreement are as follows:

> Isis has granted Antisense Therapeutics Limited rights to ©

-

use Isis technology (i.e. Isis” patented technology) to
commercialise antisense drugs to a number of protein
targets (i.e. a research ficence for each protein target). A
certain-number of these research licences to protein-targets
are also extendible to commercialisation licences.

The agreements with Isis provide access to and assistance
in expanding Antisense Therapeutics Limited's drug
pipeline and also provide access to and assistance in the
Company's development projects including an exclusive
license to a multiple sclerosis drug in lsis' preclinical :

pipeline; access to Isis manufacturing for provision of bulk -

quantities of antisense compounds for clinical trials; and
access 10 Isis' preclinical development services for a
sufficient period to allow smooth technology transfer.

The intangible assets were amortised on a straight-tine
basis over the term of the rights granted, five years. At 30

June 2007, the intangible assets had been fully amortised. ‘

r/'
& N y
. i
R ‘. ~
Note 12. Other assets N o HR
; / Parent Entity .
: o 2007 c, 2006
e 3 : 4"' ) %
. e
Prepayments ' 7 66,407 ;o3.3y
- - / 7 = "&
Note 13. Trade and othér payables , 4 il
- ‘ . e Parerit Entity 4
A i 2007 7 2006
: $ . e
- £ ) et i
Trade payables | 25594 7 24,493
Accrued expenses 1,887.03% 190,818
A . . .
Otherpayables 71,185 1,142
< 1,913.817 . 216,453

o
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Parent Entity
N 4 200 = 2006
e P . ‘ . . . !\1019 % PP $
(a} Liabilities - _ ' ‘ .
Current RN I
: 3.
Income Tax - - -
Total : ! -
Non-current .
Deferred tax liability comprises:
i trade and other receivables (7.837} - -
provisions - L ~ - {564)
* - i ) . f - . o
o < atcrued expénses 3o i " {1,844 ;M -
i - "y
) Total : : o {9.681) LY (564)
~ - (b} Assets . . ’;\‘;;f". // L < o ,-": ;
—— = ;
Delerred tax assets comprjse: Ve / ;
K ~ plantand eg;uipm?ﬁt 5 i . 6327 f' ‘jw .
7 ; : =+ 0
_ “trade and other receivablés - /'( # 7,103
. 7 i
e ._provisions ,,"j 3 T N 3,600 - j’l T .
k goif s s i T .
-accrued expenses / . - 7 39
AL R S ' .
Total oy . . 9,927 S 7,422
- - &) .4 % ..'A . - 5 - - c
(¢} Reconciliations: ™ + |- o L
L at -
b i
(i) Gross Mqvements .
The overall moverment in the deferred . / .
tax account is as follows: // ' .
- Opening balance 6,858 . ’ (47,550
Under/(Over) provision in respect of prior years 4570 - L.
{Charge} / credit to income statement {11,182) 54,408
- Closing balance 246 ‘ 6,858
ANNUAL REPORT 2007
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. 3 . Parent Entity

2007 2006

: b3 3
(i) Deferred Tax Liability
The fﬁovement in deferred 1ax liability for each temporary difference
during the year is as follows:
Tracke and other receivables:
Opening Balance | 7,103 -
Under/(Over) provision in respect of prior yeors ) . 2,170 ’ ' -
[tharge) / credit to income statement B {17,110 . -
Closing Balance - 783 -
AcérAﬁed.expensres: V
Opening Baiance ! 9 - -
: . Under/(Over) provision ingrésp'ect of prior years ) | 2400 . »‘ \: -
(Charge) f cedittoi ncqrr'ié statement ' (4,563 -
Closing BaIa’ﬁce ’.' ' e ’ 3 _ (1.844) ; f -
P:oﬂ:lions: / ) . | ;';
) Opening Eaiatn{:e - ﬁ . “ L ;; {32,537}
2 B ZUhder/(Over‘)!provisian ir'1 respect of ;;rior years - ‘ ’ , 4 -
(Charge) / c_i"edit,tc') income statement . . /_,-’{ . 31,973
' Closing Ba]iancé o o L jf'r . {564}
{ii) Deferred Tax Aés?’ts . .
. The tiavement i;li' deferred tax-assets for each temporary difference , g f
during the year is as follows:
Plant and equipment: .
Opening éa]énce ) B P . - . . "
Under/(Over) provision in respect of prior years - .-
(Charge} / ¢redit to income statement 6,327 .
Cl.c.sing Balance ) 6,327 | -
Trade and other !’eceivables: ,.
Opening Balance - {9461}
Under/{Over} provision in respect of prior years - T
{Charge) / credit to income statemenl.: - . 16,564
Closing Balance i - ‘7,103\

[57] ANTISENSE HERAPEUTICS



Accrued expenses

. Openi-ng Balance ] . . B - X (5,552}
l\Jnderl(Over) provi;ién in respect of prior years . -
(Charg;afYcregit toincome statement T -, . | e “ . o 5,873
Closing Balance .o o : I . 3-19

Provisions * e 4
Openi}\g Balance : . (564 -
UndérZ(Over) provisioa-w i-n respect of prior years o — L . -
[{Charge) / credit to income statement . ' 4,164 e T, L
Closin’g‘ Balance - o ‘ ‘ 3,6bO . ' oo
(d) Deferred tax assets not brought-to account;, .
'i;emporary qiﬂerencéé i d o ’ 246 ‘ *.“ j“6.858
Operating losses ' ‘.,/: 4 C V IV V- . P 5'391-3;490.‘ e 5‘7E?14.’357,-
p E B80T o 7331715,
;7 7
The benefits of the tax los_s:_e'; and ti@ﬁnéjdiﬂerences will only be Erealised‘ii: : . ";/i lj ‘

(a) the Comp?ny derive;s"future assessable income of a nature and amount sufficient to enable the bengfis of the taxation
. . iy R T
deductions o be realised; - ‘ ‘ : / P
i ; B r .

{b} the Company continues }6 comply with the conditions of deductibility imposed by,law; and .~ . ,

E - - : G L P AT
{c) “thiere are no changes irftaxation legistation adversely affecting the Company in réalising the benefit frdm the deductions for .
: y .

{
the losses. CF ‘ . -
I e s

Yoo s /.
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;. ¢ At30June 2007 no ﬁieférred tax agsets have been recognised, refer to note 1(h). o -

{58].




hall

-Note 15. Provisions

- Parent Entity
B 2007 ' 2006
Current $ $
Emp!oyeé Entitlements: | ) ‘
Opening batance at beginning of the year 106,5?.7 108,457
Additic;nal provisions raised during the year 82,734 1 30,646
Amounts used {99,250) (122,977)
Unuse& amounts reversed . ’ (4,059
Discount rate adjustment - (5.,490)
Transfer to non-current provisions (30,907} -
Balance at end of the year g 59,148 - 106,577
. 4 ) .
Nt;n Current ." 1}_ ) ED
. Employee Entitlements: - ’ L . 3
Opening balarice at beg‘iﬁning of year/ - J ’ -
Additional provisions raised during year 31,606 ) :;l -
Amm.mt;s used /_fi - B R "
Unus'ed amounts reve[s;d.' — (3085) . ,.', J - .
Transfer from _c.urrent provisions 30,?(#7 -
Balance at er{d of the year 59:428 / -
Analysis of Totalaﬂrovisions Y
Curent 59,148 106,577
Non-current . o g 59,428
118,576 _ 106,577

Sf THERAPEUTICS
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Note 16, Contributed equity - -

Parent Entity

2007 2006
$ ) 3
533,352,999 (500@: 464,352,499) ordinary shares ¢ 39,2{:3;360 _ - 37,214;839
(a) Ordinary Shares T : Note - 2007, ‘! . 2006
- No. s Ne. $
At the beginning of the reporting period 4_64,352.499 37,214,839 355,261,000 33,836,565
Shares issued during year " eal) 7 69,000000 - 2070000  109.090.509 3,600,000
Exercisé of options : 7 6a(ii) 500 100 500 100
Ta;ansa:;tipn costs relating to share‘issues ‘ ' . - (21,57%) - (221,826)
At rep_or_ting date . e 533,352,999 9263360 464,352,499 37,214,839
BRI s s P S » L . v

S o - . R
Ordinary shares participate in dividends and the proceeds on winding up of the parent entity in proportion to ths} number of shares
held. At shareholder meetings each ordinary share is entitled to one vote when a poll is called, otherwise each sh?areholder has one
s ?

o Ahg s g n < ¢

vote onashowof hands, . .7 . N o
L. ' ?;r’ / ) . . ‘;, . i
,/ / ‘, H
. 7 p 7 !
A » S pobe
. l' ~ (‘r t/ A o . 3 f' o N ’;. 'iu .v
{i) 2007 i Details - Number 7 Is?ue-Price $
L z .
. ] 7 R 7 .
13 Novernber 2006 / { 1ssue to professional investors . 60,000,000 ’ _gf 1,800,000
4?": “:{ ) .- = o = )A‘. » f‘ -
15November 2006,  lssue to professional investors 9,000,000 -/ 27000
e — - ’ - ¢ .
P , k L 69,000,000 / 2,070,000
T - k " . - - . B ;
2006 i e
10 April 2006 ‘j . Issue to professional investors and institutions * 109,090,909 ‘ 3,600,000
(i} 2007 N Details ’ ~ Number Issue Price $
1 February 2007~ - - Exercise of options ' e 500 ) - 100
2006 ’
3 November 2005 . . * " Exercise 6foptions o ‘ 500 : 100
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. Note17. Reserves

(q) Nature and purpose of thg reserve

hS .‘ -
The option reserve recognises the proceeds from the issue of options over ordinary shares. Upon exercise of these options,
amounts recorded in the option reserve are transferred to comributad equity.

Parent Entity

2007 2006

ANIISENSE THERAPEUTICS

(b} Options B $ $
3,650,000 (2006: 116,509,525) options over fully-paid ordinary shares 750,486 738,903
2007 2006
l Note | . f\:Io. . '3 No. 3
Atthe beginnir':g of the reporting Q__eriod ’ 116,509,525 738,903 125,160,025 _ 725885 .
Optionsissued duringyear 7 176() . . s,oso,j_poo' 13018
Shares issued during the year _r,‘ . 17k} {5000 _ e (500) .
Expired options L iy (11,459,009 ; (13,7qd},0630) ' -
Forfeited options ! »17b(¥)u (1,400,000} (1,1}84) ;‘;’. H - .
| Expense of op_ﬁons /f ' _;/’ ] 7 B - 13,067 ;" - -
At reporting date K ’ 3650000 750,486 "I.‘lé,SO?iSZS 738,903
v
! . : 4
(i) 2006 !?. ‘j Details Number Exercise Price $ J,»"Expiw Date Value Expensed $
5 July 2005 - I Issue to employees .5,050,0(:0 0.072 s, ;,'27 June 2013 . 13018 -
.
(i} 2007 Details Numbsr Exercise F‘rice'$. Expiry Date
1February 2007~ Exercise of options 500 020 1 February 2007
2006
3 Novembér 2005 | Exercise of optio.ns | 500 ) 0.200 1 February 2007
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) Details Number Exercise Price $ ;
' ‘*3(3 Novem‘k:{e"r‘"ZOQti;_ Expired options 20,000,000 . 0200 E
4 February 2007 ’ Exp'nrec_j options 91,459,-025 0.;200
e T 159025 !
2006 e Details . ) Nlun*’uber . Exercise Pricg_$ g
j'A31 JLjIy- 2005 _‘Expi}ed options - 2200000 . 02000
31 July 2005 Expired options 11,500,000 0.200
- [ 13700000 S
(i-\f}‘200'7 | N Detaits Number Exercise Price $ 3 : :Expiry Date Value Expensed §
5 Februéry 2007 Farfeited options 1400:&!) ' 0072 27 Jun 2013 ‘ (1,484}
- , : : . - {
',‘.;‘?%,P\REEO“S outft?rldjhg aiﬁ 30 June 2007 /‘/ PR L I
“"”s" S Ty v te- o o v Noof Opﬁiqp:s;- i‘t‘
Qate of Issue i . /' Sdul 2005 _ 2 Felby 2002~ 19 Dec 2001 15 Nov 2(})'{ o Total
Onissue at beginning of year / . 5050000 | SBI5Z 32500000 20000000 116509525
' I-E;,e‘r;:iéed during }héje?r ‘ L ?f/ /// - . N (SOOi i ‘ - ;": ;1 : (50?) .
‘E‘S{éired dufing the year /. !// (R959029 (RSO0 (R00000N0 (1145902
Forfeited during th,e;x,_;;gﬁ _ e {1,400,000) . A (1,400,000)
fONl{tstanding at balaricd date | W 3,650,000 - - o r,.fj - 3,650,000
( Efo;red ;'.Qbs:équenf%?; bala}_rfi:e date * ;‘ ' N ‘ . T S0 4 =
oﬁis’:anding at date.fof [?iliectors' Réport- 3,650,000 - ,’/ - 3,650,000
Number of reci;:ﬁent.ff‘I ;’i -6 N/A N/AJ;", N/A
: ME;(gr;:is:e_qprice_$ .:_é\; u \ ' :_‘O.Dgé 5.. ) '0;2‘_0““ ' ' ‘ . 926 ]jﬂ ‘\ 020
-Exérciserpériod- from . v | 28 Jun 2006 126_Feb:‘i‘CK)J2 0 .1.191D6§ N20:61’“ ) 1'.; N;\: 2601
To {expiration day) 2Z7Jun2013 } Feb 2007, . JV i )1 Feb 2007 - 30-Nov 2006
| A ) . , S “,t:.m"»‘ .
' "'Ti.‘e'foﬂ'owing F;f-C:IJ:dftibn of options vest fr'i;m the dates shown: L g ‘ :
100% ' 26Feb2002  19DecZ01 15 MNov 2001
20% 27 Jun 2006
20% 27 Jun 2007
20% : k 27 Jun 2008
0% 27 Jun 2009
,20%{ ) 27 Jun 2010 =

S T ol

S S
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~ Note 18.  Commitments and contingencies

.

- Parent Entity

2007 % 2006 %

Co @) Expendit.ur'e commitments relating to research and dévelopment are payable as follows: :
not later than 12 months 3,597,934 2,831.,13;48
between 12.months and 5 year-s - 7 -
greater than 5 years - .
3,59.7,934 2,831,448

{b) Lease e;pend_iture co rnrnitmer"uts:
ot later than 12 months ' 225% 138,954
between 12 manths and 5 yearsr / ’ - - -
greater than 5 years N . - ,1 -
| ' 22,599 : 1 ;é,észx

The lease experditure comr‘rmm;‘fi\s relate to t/herleasing of office premises. The lease is for 2 term of ane year with a
- 7

e

e
v

a further one year in July each year. -

Note 19.  Segment reporting

. . . s - . . . . s : .
_ The Company operates predominately in one industry and one gecgraphical segment, being the health care industry and Australia
¥ - B i

respectively. i

'Note 20. Cash flow infarcn{;tipn

}
i
i

H
4

. f’
d Parent Entity

k
teneval option for

/ 2007 2006
' $ $

- a) Reconciliat.ign of cé?’s'hlﬂow fr‘oﬁioperations;'wit‘h'bss afterincome tax ' < we
 tossforthepeios o 14,835,963 (5462401
Add back depreciation expense 15,399 18,141
g Addback amortisation of intgliectuai propen;vr‘ o0 A45534 1,437,486
Add back unrealised foreign currency exchange (gaini/loss . - 3709
Add back share based payments - 11,583 13,018
rnc'reasesf(Decreases) in emplo;'ee provision; . 11,999 . {1,880)
(Increases)/Decréases in accounts receivables {277,3564) (7.8
W(Increases){[)ecreases in other current assets o 251,920 77,384
Increases/{Decreases) in accounts payables 1,697,364 (é6,218)

Net cash flows used in operating activities (2,679,528}

(3,958,499}

{b} Non-cash financing and investing activities

See note 17 for details regarding issues of options to employees.
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Note 21.- Share-based payments

‘Executwes may also be provided with longer-term incentives 1hrough the Company’s Employee Option Plan, 1o allow the executives

to participate in arid: beneﬁt from the growth of the Company as a result of their efforts and to assist in motivating and retaining
these key employees over the 1cmg term. There are currently & employees eligible to participate in thIS scheme. Options issued to
employees are not listed options and as such do not have a readily available market value.

e

The foliowmg table illustrates the number and wengh:ed avérage exercise price of and movement in share options issued during

~

the year: -

.os
~ N ?

. 2007 - T 2006
Numberof’ .., Weighted Number of Weighted
Optioris . °F Avarage © Options ™ . Average
Exercise Price $ : Exercise Price $
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 5,050,000 - 0072 - 5,200,000 N 0.200
Granted _ . - - 5,050,000 . 0.072

- i 7 FCAl * Ca R *
Forfeited o (1,400,000), - 0072 : " -
Exercised R - B - . 4 i .-
Expired - S . 15,200,000/ } 0.200
Outstanding at yearend " 3.650,000 0072 5050000 | - 0.072
. / e ]
[Exercisable at yearend ¢ / 1,460,000 . - 0.072- . 1,010,000 5-, : 0072
. ?, L : O : . X

During the year ended 30 June. 2007 5 employees who recewed options in the year ended 30 June 2006 ceased their employment
i

with Antisense Therapeutlcs Limited. As a result, these optlons were forfeited. // '
ey 4 S v . =
. The following’ summanses mformatlon about optlons held by employees asat 30 June 2007 /r - ‘
* Number of Optlons .!‘ L Grant D:ate v Vesting Dates - - : Explry Date !,-'; [Exercise Price
70000 ¢ Sy205 BJune2006 . . 37June2013 50072
RET IV 5.July 2005 Zoune 2007, ., une20)3 . L S0072
730,000 T 5 July 2005 28 June 2008 - T 27 ure 2013 ; $0.072
730,000 Shuly2005 28 June 2009 77 June 2013 . $0072
© 930,000 O BMy20S T 2BJune200 0 27Juee2003 . S0072

Each option entitles the, holder to purchase one ordinary share in Antisense  Therapeutics Limited-at an exercise price of $0.072.
There are na performance conditions attached to the options, and the option holder may not exercise more than the following
proportions of options on the following dates:

Prior to 27 June 2006 o - 0%
; Between 28 June 2006 and 27 June 2007 ‘ , o o 20% .
Between 28 June 2007 and 27 June 2008 7 a0%
Between 28 June 2008 and 27 June 2009 - &0% i
Between 28 June 2009 and 27 June 2010 . ‘ 80% - N
Between 28 June 2010 and 27 June 2013 - 100% o "
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.The fair value of the options granted under the Employee Option Plan is estimated as at the grant date using a binomial model

taking into account the terms and conditions upoin which the options were granted.

The value of the options attributed to remuneration of directors and employees for the current financial year total $11,583 (2006
$13,018) and represent the amount that has been-determined by allocating the fair valué of options issued over the vesting period.

The following table lists the inputs to the model used to determine the value of the options expensed during the year:

Vesting Date ' | ' 30'June 2007 30 June 2006

Dividend yield . L o, ‘ -
Expected volatility ’ : 50.60% 50.00%
Risk-free interest rate ; : | " 516% 5.16%
Expected life of option {years) ‘ 6.13 5.21
Option exeféise price o E $0.ﬁ72 | $0.072
Weighted average share pnce at grant daie o 7 . $0.043 ) 30.043 )
Calue per option - o 300179 a ,‘\‘4.50.01 58 '
v ' ' ‘;

/

The expected life of the optlon is based on h|stoncal data and is not necessarily mdu:atwe of exercise patterns that may occur.
The expected volatility reflects the assumpnon that the historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may.; ‘also not

necessarily be the aclual autcorme. / : : . '
At 30 June 2007 the market share griée was $0.037. ’

Note 22.  Events after the balénce sheet date -

No matters or cucumstances have arisen:since the end of the financial year, which significantly affected or may mgmﬂcantly affect
I
the operations ofthe Company the results.of those operations or the affairs of the Company in subsequent financial years.

3 ’ P

ANTISENSY THERAPEUTICS



| Arme e mn o e i

hS

Note 23\. Refated party transactions

Parent Entity -

- 2007 2006
W $ $
Transactions between related parties are on normal commercial terms and conditions
no mere favourable than those available to other partues unless otherwrse stated
Transactions with related partles “
a) Other Related Parties
Purchases from Circadian Technologies Ltd
Circadian Technologies Ltd owns 19.26% of the ordinary shares rn ] .
Antisense Therapeutics Lirnited (2006: 22.13%). 2,167 141
{b) Key management personnel .
Purchases fromylsis Pharmacedticals, Inc. {"lsis*)
Dr Stanley Crooke, a director of the Company until 31 July 2006 i also a director of Isis.
OrFrank Bennett, a director of the Company is also an employee of Isis.
Durmg the year Isis prowded various research and development related servrces to the, Company
The Company pald Isus durmg the year 411,928 :*\ 296,244
- 1 .
At 30 June, the Company owed Isis: PR . 295,61 3{ " 3215
7T
Purchases from Murdoch ChlEdrens Research Instltute ¢ MCRI ) ,, [
Prof. Gearge Werther, a director of the Company is also an executive officer of the MCRI. i 2
. During the year the MCRI provnc‘ed research related services to the Company {E' ;i‘ ,
4
/. }
The Company pa:d MCRI durmg the year: 61,540 fr’ 158,356
s !
. . /
. At 30 June, the Company 0wed MCRI C - /'( . 1m522
7 ’?’ ,;ﬁ" [ T s ‘-L,"( . :.v" ' ,". 4. - .
_ ! ,'} N . % : y
Note-24. Finanéia! ipstruments : 4

{a} Interest rate nsk i

The Company’s exposure to interest rate risk, which is the risk that a financial mstruments value will {luctuate as a result of changes in
market interest rates Jand lhe effective weighted average interest rates on classes of financial assets and financial habalmes is as follows:

N

' /
Floating Fixed Imerest Fixed Interést Fixed Interest .

Weighted Interest - Rate Rate Rate Non-Interest :
7 Average  Effective Rate _Within Year 1to Syears  Over 5years Bearing Total
2007 o Iriterast Rate $ - $ 0 % $ $ $

Financial Assets: 7
Cash and cash equivalents 603% .- 1,096,188 6,500,000 - 400 7,596,588
Trade and other receivables - - - - - 368,957 368,957
Prepayments . e - - ~ 66,407 66,407
Total Financial Assets 1,096,188 6,500,000 - - 435,764 8,031,952

Financial Liabilities:

Trade and other payables - . - - 1,913,817\"1,913,817
Provisions . , - - - . 118576 118576
Total Financial Liabilities - - . - 2,032,393 2,032,393 .
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Floating Fixed Interest Fixed Interest Fixed interest

F:nanc:al assets, which potenhaliy expose the Company to concentrations of credit nsk, Consist pnmaniy of cash and cash

' N i ] Weighted . Interest Rate Rate Rate MNon-Interest

N R Average  Effective Rate Within Year 1toSysars  OverS years "-Bearing Total
2006 " Interest Rate $ $ 3 3 % %
Financial Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 5.55% 1,238,930 7,000,000 S . 400 8,239,330
Trade and other receivables - - - - 91,593 91,593
Prepayments ‘ e ; . ' . 318,327 318,327
Total Financial Assets 1,238,930 7,000,600 - - 410,320 8,649,250
Financial Liabilities:
Trade and other payables - - - - 216,453 214,453
Provisions . - - - - 108577 106 577
Total Financial Liabilities R - : "L © . 323030 323030

— 4 - T
(k) Credat risk . ;’ H -
. ,' # '1

equwa[ents and term deposuts over three mon{hs The Company's cash and cash equivalents are placed with h1gh credit quality

financial 'nSt't“t'O"S Accordmgly the d'fECtOFS befieve the Company has no significant concentration of credlt rlsk
. / s ‘ _ : j
{c} Net fa:r values ¢ - p . , ;

. 4 N

The carrying amount of funancual assets and financial habilities recorded in the financial statements represents thenr respective fair

values determined in. accordance with the accounting policies disclosed n note 1.

s .
kG ) . ," . . - o i .
. ‘ . : e
‘ N )
Nate 25." Company details S
The registered ofﬁceiof the Company is: e yi
) ‘ s

Level 1, 10 Wallace »’-‘:'venue
Toorak, Victoria, 3142

The principal place of business of the Company is: " L7

6 Wallace Avenue
Toarak, Victoria, 3142
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. DIRECTORS' DECLARATION © - b ) - | B

~

N -
The directors of the Company declare that:

S

1., the. hnanc|a| statements and notes, as set out on pages 31 to 67 are in accordance with the Corporatlons Act 2001 and:

\ -

a)  comply W|th Accountlng Standards and the Corporatlons Regulatuons 200%;.and - s

a

b} give atrue and faur view of the fmancna! posmon as at 30 Jufie 2007 and of the performance for the year ended on that date

of the Company; )
2. the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial O{'hcer have each declared that
a} " the financial records of the Company for the financial year have been prope:ly malntamed in accordance with 5ecuon 286"
of the Carporations Act 2001; : H
b) the fmancxal statements and notes for the fmancual year cornply with the Accountmg Standards, and
.. ch the frnancnal statements and notes For the funanaal year gwe atrue and fairview.
3. in the directors’ opinion there are reasonable grounds to beheve that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when
they become due and payab|e i’ .
J l'.l
This declaration i |s made in accordance with a resolutlon of the board of directors. - { 4
L e N /r / ,\ . . . - - Ii < §
. L Ny Fa R ‘ N T
fop
; it
e - . r" . ’
AR . R ,ff' ¢ - e
P / ! -
/ _/’
M Robert W Moses .,’ . L o -
- independent Non Execuuve Chalrman o p /
! y ;
i f o . -/ s :
= A .
! I
.
o , /
P . o . S N
Mr Mark Diamond C o /
Managing Director 2
A/ ’
_Dated this 18 day of September 2007 y
. o s .,
- N ~
. .
s
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“Elf ERNST & YOUNG

INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT TO
MEMBERS OF ANTISENSE
THERAPEUTICS LTD

We have audited the accompanying financial report of Antisense Therapeutics Limited (the company), which comprises the balance
sheet as at 30 June 2007, and the income statement, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for the year ended on
that date, a summary of significant accounting _pélicies, other explanatory notes and the directors’ declaration.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Report

B
The directors of the company are responsible for the préparation and fair presentation of the financial report in accordance with the

Australian Accounting Standards {including the Australian Accounting Interpretations) and the Corporations Act 2001. p
- This responsibility includes establishing and maintaining internat controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the s

financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying 'appfopriate
accounting policies; and makmg accounting estimates that ase reasonable in the circumstances. In Note 1, the dsrectors also state,
in accordance with Accountmg Standard AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements, that compliance with the Australian
equivalents to Internanonal Flnancaal Reporting Standards ensures that the financial report, comprssung the finaqtial statements and
notes, comphes with Internanona! Financial Reporting Standards. } g ;,’ ’

Aud:‘tors Responsnblhly R . I E .

- P

Our responsibility is to exgréss an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with -
Awstralian Auditing Standards. These Auditing Standards require that we comply with relevant ethical reciuirements relating to audit
engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial report is {ree from material
misstaternent and that the remuneration disclosures comply with Accounting Standard AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures.

r

© An audit involves pen‘crm_ing procedures to obitain audit evidence about the amounts and discldsures in the financiat report.

The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of ihaterial misstatement of the financial
feport, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider intesfial controls relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair preseniation of the financial report in order to dééign audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal controls. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall présentation of the financial report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

ANTISENSF THERAPEWTICS
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Independence

In conductang our audit we have met the independence requirements of the Corporatlons Act 2001, We have given to the directors

" of the company a written Auditor’s Independence Declaration, a copy of which is included in the directors’ report.
~ Lo - R - .

Auditor’s Opinion
In 6ur opinion: ™ B ’ o v B
1. the financial report of Antisense Therapeutics Limited is in accordance with: -

Wit . v o,

{a} the Corporations Act 2001 mcludmg -

) giving a true and fair view of the financial posmon ‘of Antisense Thempeuucs l.1mned at 30 June 2007 an;ﬁ of its performance for
the year ended on that date; and ‘

N - > ‘ R

it complying with Australian Accounting Standards (mcludmg the Australian Accounting Inte:pretatlons) and the Corporations
Act 2001, g :

2. the financial report also complies with lnternalic:;\alrFinénciql Reporting Standards as disclosed in Note 1. .

‘ < TT
- i '
o ) ‘ - - .’{’ » ra :
Cnsty Youn _ - -
‘ : o . o - ~ . . R e
Ernist & Young p . . ' , - R /o - A
o / yd : S U RIE SR A
- s ) ] ) i1 .
/,/ :/ // i /r { . .
4 s . B . "o . I ~ v
N, WL E TV il B N ; : : a / [ ‘
v/ / 7 K . B . PR , o
\ .- ¢ " p ' 2 . l £ I
i - . . N ooy
£ e '
Joanne Lonergan o 7 ‘ LVl ’-f *
Partner .- Ty 7 i . ) - : . N 4 7 %
! . ' B o / .
Melbourne ; : . 7’ /
R f/ o % . R L - vab o,
¢ i "
i 7
‘ D S
et ds - » oorr T Y 3 *
Dated this‘18th day of September 2007 ‘ : L ; o
. v ) o 3 - v . .
. 1?3‘ . . o . . 2" ‘<
L - v Sy Rt '/"J.-"’;" : RS T
H . Y, s *
Y i o '
* ,/ +
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~ SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

As at 12 \September 2007

i Number of Holders of equity securities 4
Ordinary Shares :
: 533,352,999 fully paid ordinary shares are held by 2,399 individual shareholders.
: Adl ordinary shares carry one vote per share.
iOptions .
) 3,650,000 options exercisable at $0.072 on or before 27 June 2013, are held by & individual shareholders.
Options do not carry a right to vote. Voting rights will be attached 1o the unissued shares when the eptions have been exercised.
. Distribution of- Holders In Each Class of Equity'Securities
i .
. Fully paid ordinary shares
100 ' Sk
1,001 - 5,000 n 7 S 198
5001 - 10,000 S ‘ PR
10,001 - 100,000 ! - : _ ! 308
T - - 4 =
100,001 - and over ) e . 413
1”; . - g " - i ; I! -
i Total number of shareholders ' 2,399
i - - N H - - - ~ — - X g g
t Unmarketable parcels /' : 761
] . N -
| .,
| N
| L _ .
| g | * .
i :
' .
. P
!
!
!
i
i
.
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Twenty Largesi Holders of Quoted Securities

R
e

. T »

Shareholders

Fully Paid Ordinary Shares

) Mumber %

1 Polychip I;Harmaceuticals Pty Ltd . . 102,739,830 19.26,
2 'gyngene Ltd 7 - 54,413,467 10.26
3 ISIS‘PharmaceuticaIel; inc 40,_333,333 1.56
4 Firebird Global Master Fund If Lid 30,000,000 5.62
5 Firebird Global Master Fund Ltd < 130,000,000 5.6?
6 Citicorp Nominees Pty Ltd 26,720,877 501
7 ANZ Nominees Ltd ( 13,459,018 252
8 Flintberg Pty Lid P o , 8,010,985 150
9 Murdoch Childrens Research nsttute - "' 6925000 130,
10 Mr Glen Cc;_fby Bl . ' - 5,240,000 N\ 098
11 Mr Nicholas Geza Szibo 7" " 4,160,000 f E Coogm
12 Custodial Services Ltd r{,z' / ’ 1554317 ; : 067
13 Mrs Lois Alma Moore, Mr’)\!istair Al/ex’gﬁder Moare, Moqre Family Supe'r'Fu_nd 2984086 7 ",'f ‘ fj 0.56

- 14 Mr*Trevor Read ),f'f /'/ 2,400,000/,'; ','; ‘0.45_
15 Spoﬂight Superannyiation P,z;ua 2,071,7@75 , ’ ‘ 0.39
16 N;r Waytjé'_Mar‘ltin I?i:acogl: aqd ?_\ﬂrs L_inc!a_Hydar Peacock 2050000 )('F . 0.38
17 Mr John Co—?stabllé ;y}- /’{ 2,CID,00€‘),,' B 37
18 tink Trade@[dust}i?tﬂj"(l_Ltd . . - = 2,000,060 ... 0¥
19 Bamios Py tid 191,924 036
20 Jagen Nominees Pty Ltd ) 7 1850000 035

' 342,764,632

64.24
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s, ..

Unquoted equity securities holdings greater than 20%
Nil

Substantial Shareholders

The names of substantial shareholders who have notified the Company in aczordance with Section 4718 of the Corporations Act are:

B

No. of Shares ‘%
Polychip Pharmaceuticals Pty Ltd 102,739,830 - 19.264
S).vngene Limited . 54;41 3,467 10.20
Isis Pharmaceuticals nc. ) T 40,333,333 7.56
- Firebird Group | 77,386,837 1451
L 274,873,467 5153

’ -

Shareholder Enquiries .

Shareholders with enquiries abgu’t their shareholdings should contact the share registrys !

- s .
Computershare Investor Services Pty Ltd y 7 ’

. Yarra Falls L i - K i
452 lohnston Street ' ' ‘
Abbotsford, Victoria, 3067 S .
Telephone: (03} 94155000 ¢ _ ' ' . ;

. ; , . .
Change of address, change of name, consolidation of shareholdings

«

. ; . . ,
Sharcholders should contact the Share Registry to obtain details of the pracedure required for any of these changes.

Annual report mailing list
t i

Shareholders who wisﬁ 10 receive a printed copy.of the Annuat Financial Repart should advise the Share Registry orthe Company in
writing. Alternatively, an electronic copy of the Annual Financial Report is available from www.asx.com.au or www.antisense.com.au.

Al shareholders will continue to receive all other shareholder information. -
) A

E

Tax file numbers ) o e

It is important that Australian resident shareholders, including children, have their tax file number or exemption details noted by the
Share Registry. : . ’ h

Chess (Clearing House Electronic Subregister System)

Shareholders wishing to moveé to uncertified holdings under the Australian Stock Exchange CHESS systern should contact
their stockbroker.

Uncertified share register

Shareholding statements are issued at the end of each month that there is a transaction that alters the balance of your holding.
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"COMPANY DIRECTORY-

o

. - ’, .
Directors .., .. -
Mr Robert W Moses: " .. Independent Non-Executive Chairman . ) L .

* Mr Mark Diamond - . “Managing Director RS ' A )

Dr Chris Belyea Independent Non-Executive Dnrector B
Dr Frank Bennett - "' Non-Executive Diréctor . ’ T
Prof. Graham Mitchell - Independent Non-Executive Dlrector
: -Prof. George Werther Noén-Executive Director R
- / - -
Company Secretary - Auditors
Mr Phillip Hains - ' g o . Ernst and You}\g ) i
c - 8 Exhibition Street - 2
ompany , . . 4 o : - o :

v N ) : / - Melbourne, Victoria, 3000
Antisense Therapeutics Limited o v
ABN 41095060745 - ¢ . Bankers o S

Registered Oﬁ‘ce - ‘f/"/ .-'//. Commonweslth Bank'?f AijstrahaK . "f . '

P * . S Melbolrne, Vuctona A |
Level 1, 10 Wal!ace Avenue 7 //_A ) £
Toorak, Victoria, 3142/ // . . Soficitors R

s Telephone + 61 3 9827 8999 , ) Minter Ellison /

Principle Place of Busmess l,-’ > C e Rialto Tovyegs, Level 23, 525 Collins §treet ; e
f / o ‘ ‘Melbourne, Victoria, 3000 Vs / N

6 Wallace Avenue K : i oS o
- "Toorak, Victoria, 31'42; ;o T . “Share Registry -+~ © 7 / )
Te!ephone +613 9827 8999 : Camputershare investor Servuces Pty Ltd
Tac+61 39871066 4 T T gl e A AT

e
. Securities Quoted. _.5‘,1_’; : : oot 452 Johnston Street /',./ R
L oL : Abbotsford Vtctorsa 3067 j/
Australian Stock Exchange . ) Telephone {03} 9415 5000 . i -
ASX Code: ANP - i -, o .o . B
; S - ‘Webs:te= P P - Vo
American Depository Receipts (ADR) . www.antlsense.com.a'u
Level 1 ADR Program, ADRs are traded in the US over- the— A p
counter (OTC) market. . iz T e g
Ratio: 1 ADR = 20 ordmary shares ' B
Symbol: ATHJY - - - . R N ‘ . A
CUSIP: 037183100 - S '

AMNUAL REPORT 2007




31 August 2007 TN 27 D L0

ATL1103 for Growth & Sight Disorders Project Uﬂp_dat,e, T

VIS A -

* Data from animal retinopathy model published in scientific journal

* Clinical drug manufacture underway, pre<linical animal toxicology
studies on schedule to start before the end of the year

Antisense Therapeutics Ltd. (ASX:ANP) is pleased to report the publication today of positive data
from its ATL1103 research program. The peer-reviewed scientific publication describes how
administration of an antisense drug targeting the growth hormone receptor (GHr) significantly
suppressed blood vessel overgrowth in a mouse model of retinopathy and has been published in
the journal “Molecular Vision™. The paper (Wilkinson-Berka et al., “An antisense oligonucleotide
targeting the growth hormone recepior inhibits neovascularization in a mouse model of
retinopathy”, Molecular Vision 13, 1529-38, 2007) can be viewed at www.molvis.org.

This study, conducted by Associate Professor Jennifer Wilkinson-Berka from Monash University,
adds to our previously published mouse data on the suppression of the insulin like growth factor-|
{IGF-1) hormone in blood (Tachas et al., J. Endocrinology 189, 147-154, 2006). ANP has
previously reported suppression of blood IGF-l levels in monkeys following administration of
ATL1103. IGF-I is responsible for the unwanted effects of growth hormone (GH). In diseases of
excessive GH action, GH stimulates GHr in the liver, which causes the liver to secrete excess
IGF-I.

ATL1103 is a second generation antisense drug designed to block the expression of GHr thereby
reducing levels of IGF-l in the blocd and is a potential treatment for diseases associated with
excessive growth hormone action, including acromegaly {(an abnormal growth disorder of organs,
face, hands and feet) and diabetic retinopathy. IGF-l suppression is a recognised clinical marker of
a drug’s activity in the treatment of these diseases.

Research Director at Antisense Therapeutics Ltd, Dr Christopher Wraight commented that
“ATL1103 is underpinned by a solid scientific rationale that is evidenced by our published
preclinical pharmacology data. A key feature of our drug development strategy is the ability to
measure IGF-l suppression in patients treated with ATL1103 which allows us to confirm the clinical
activity of ATL1103 at an earlier stage in clinical studies. ATL1103's biological target, GHr, is
predominantly found in the liver. Recent clinical successes announced by our technology partner
Isis Pharmaceuticals Inc. with other liver-targeting antisense drugs give us further confidence in the
therapeutic potential of ATL1103."

Manufacture of ATL1103 for pre-clinical studies and human clinical trials is underway at Isis, with
pre-clinical animal toxicology studies anticipated to commence before the end of the year.

Background Information

ATL1103 is a second generation antisense drug designed to block growth hormone receptor (GHr)
expression thereby reducing levels of the hormone insutin-like growth factor-1 {(IGF-1) in the blood and is a
potential treatment for diseases assaociated with excessive growth hormone action. These diseases include
acromegaly, an abnormal growth disorder of organs, face, hands and feet, and diabelic retinopathy, a
common disease of the eye and a major cause of blindness. Acromegalic patients are known to have
significantly higher blood IGF-l levels than healthy individuals. Reduction of these levels to normal is
accepted by clinical authorities as the primary marker of an effective drug treatment for the disease. GHr is a
clinically validated target in the treatment of acromegaly. In the case of diabetic retinopathy, published
clinical studies have shown that treatments producing a reduction in IGF-| levels retarded the progression of
the disease in patients. ATL1103 is supported by a strong intellectual property position that protects
ATL1103 until at least 2023.
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Acromegaly is a serious chronic life shortening disease triggered by excess secretion of growth harmone
{GH) by benign pituitary tumours. Oversupply of GH over stimulates liver, fat and kidney cells, through their
GH receptors, to produce excess levels of Insulin-Like Growth Factor-l (IGF-l} in the blood manifesting in
abnormal growth of the face, hands and feet, and enlargement of body organs including liver, kidney and
heart. The primary treatments for acromegaly are to surgically remove the pituitary gland and/or drug therapy
to normalize GH and serum IGF-I levels. In North America, Europe and Japan there are approximately
40,000 diagnosed acromegaly patients with about half requiring drug therapy. In 2004, the total acromegaly
market was valued at US$780M and forecast to grow with the introduction of newer and more effective
medications.

Diabetic retinopathy is one of the leading causes of vision loss. Over 5 million Americans aged 18 and
older are affected by diabetic retinopathy. Around 12,000-24,000 patients with diabetic retinopathy lose their
eyesight each year in the US alone. This condition is caused by new blood vessel formation in the retina or
macula (the central part of the retina). tn diabetes, high blood glucose can cause oxygen deprivation in
certain tissues, which can stimulate factors that induce additional blood vessels in the retina. These new
blood vessels may break and bieed into the eye leading to scarring within the eye. Surgical ablative
treatments such as photocoagulation (laser therapy) are available but are not completely effective, may
cause partial vision loss, and can only be used a limited number of times. There is presently no
pharmaceutical therapeutic appraved for the treatment of diabetic retinopathy.

About Antisense Therapeutics Limited Antisense Therapeutics Limited (ASX: ANP) is an Australian
publicly listed biopharmaceutical drug discovery and development company. Its mission is to create, develop
and commercialise novel antisense pharmaceuticals for large unmet markets.

Contact Information: Website: www.antisense.com.au
Managing Director — Mark Diamond +61 3 9827 8999
Company Secretary — Phillip Hains +61 3 9824 5254
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ATL1102 Phase IIa Multiple Sclerosis Trial Update

Antisense Therapeutics Limited (ASX:ANP) is pleased to provide the following update on its
ATL1102 Phase Ila Multiple Sclerosis (MS) clinical trial.

The Company is currently conducting this 80 patient trial to assess the safety and efficacy of
ATL1102 in relapsing-remitting MS patients in Poland, Czech Republic, Bulgaria, Romania,
Slovak Republic and Germany.

As previously reported the Company had made an application to conduct the dinical trial in
Russia. The Company is pleased to advise that approval for the clinical trial has been granted
by the regulatory authorities in Russia.

The Company’s ability to receive approval from the regulatory authorities in 7 countries to
conduct this study is a reflection of the quality of the ATL1102 clinical trial application.

Screening and enrollment of patients is on-going at all active trial sites. 58 patients have now
been enrolled into the study. More than half the enrolled patients have completed the dosing
phase of the trial.

The study continues under the supervision of a Data and Safety Monitoring Board - an
independent group of neuroscience experts who oversee a strict safety protocol for the conduct
of the trial.

While the Company correctly anticipated the timeframe for trial approval in Russia, various
administrative processes in Russia have delayed the initiation of the clinical trial at the Russian
sites thus impacting on the projected timeline for completion of the trial. The Company now
expects that all the remaining patients will be enrolled and the study completed in time for trial
results to be reported in 1Q°08, which is slightly later than previous guidance of year end ‘07.

About ATL1102 for MS

ATL1102 is a second generation antisense inhibitor of CD49d, a subunit of VLA-4 (Very Late Antigen-4), and is
currently in Phase Ila dinical trials as a treatment for MS. In inflammation, white blood cells (leukocytes) move out
of the bloodstream into the inflamed tissue, for example, the CNS in MS, and the lung airways in asthma. The
inhibition of VLA-4 may prevent white blood cells from entering sites of inflammation, thereby halting progression of
the disease. VLA-4 is a dinically validated target in the treatment of MS. Antisense inhibition of VLA-4 has
demaonstrated positive effects in a number of animal models of inlammatory disease including MS, the MS animal
data having been published in a peer reviewed scientific journal,

ATL1102 Phase ITa Study Design Summary

The study is a multi-centre, randomized, doubie-blinded, placebo-controlled dlinical trial, in approximately 80
patients with relapsing-remitting MS. Patients receive either ATL1102 or placebo over eight weeks. The goal of the
Phase IIa trial is to obtain preliminary evidence of the drug’s effectiveness. This is assessed by using MRI (magnetic
resonance imaging) indices. MRI's are conducted at monthly intervals over the 8 week dosing period and at
monthly intervals for a further 8 weeks following completion of dosing.

About Antisense Therapeulics Limited

Antisense Therapeutics Limited (ASX: ANP} is an Australian publicly listed biopharmaceutical drug discovery and
development company. Hs mission is to create, develop and commercialise nove!l antisense pharmaceuticals for
large unmet markets.

Contact Information: Website: www.antisense.com.au
Managing Director — Mark Diamond +61 3 9827 8999
Company Secretary — Phillip Hains  +61 3 9824 5254
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IMPORTANT NOTICE

The default option for receiving your annual report has changed from a printed copy to be via our website,
You have the choice of receiving notification about accessing your annual report online
or continuing to receive a printed annual report.

MAKE YOUR SELECTION ON THE BACK OF THIS FORM

Dear valued shareholder

YOUR

ANNUAL LEGISLATION CHANGE - WHAT THIS MEANS FOR YOU

REP ORT The Australian Government recently introduced legislation allowing the default option for receiving
annuai reports to be via a company’s website which reduces costs and provides benefiis to the

environment. You will now receive online annual reports unless you request a printed copy. We will

YOUR advise you in your Notice of Annual General Meeting when the annual report becomes available on

bsite at www.antisense.com.au.
CHOICE "™

All other shareholder communications will continue to be sent to you by post.

WHAT ARE YOUR OPTIONS?

Q Elect to continue receiving, free of charge, a printed copy of the annual report.

If you take no action, infermation on accessing your online annual report
will be provided in your AGM mail pack.

If you have any questions about this form please contact an investor services representative on
1300 850 505.

Yours sincerely

—F

Phillip Hains
Company Secretary

ANP_WTP_145518/000001/000001/




YOUR ANNUAL REPORT OPTIONS

Elect to continue receiving a printed copy of the annual report

To receive a printed copy of the annual report please mark the annual report box
below and send this letter back to us in the enclosed reply paid envelope.

ANNUAL REPORT
Our annual report with detailed financial, remuneration and governance information,

PLEASE ACTION THIS FORM BEFORE MONDAY 3 SEPTEMBER 2007

If you take no action, information on accessing your annual report
online will be provided in your AGM mail pack.
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